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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY MBHE

For the Year Ended 31 December
BZE+-A=1—-HLEE

2019 2018

—T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTL AE¥FTT ARMFT AREFL

Revenue Yz 839,989 814,016 769,171 669,274 512,219
Gross profit EF 268,943 224,532 185,812 152,936 133,743
Gross profit margin EME 32.0% 27.6% 24.2% 22.9% 26.1%
Profit before income tax R 715 150 A1 i A 73,661 26,724 27,526 24,339 29,143
Profit for the year FREF 65,820 23,935 22,734 20,406 24,181
Listing expenses AR — 12,753 8,549 3,129 —

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-H

2018

—Z-)\fF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT AEETT ANEETT AEETT

Total assets BELE 665,108 410,053 345,109 394,848 370,823
Total liabilifies aEEE (438,399) (325,477) (317,336) (313,892) (300,693)
Total equity EmBE 226,709 84,576 27,773 80,956 70,130
Note B3
The summary of the consolidated results and financial position of the Group AEBBE-ZT—RF  —T—CtFR-T-NF+ZA=+—HI
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are exiracted from the FREZGAEBERMBRABEREARA S —NE+ZA=+T+
Company’s prospectus dated 27 December 2019 (the “Prospectus”). HOBRER(BRER]) -
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

When we presented our 2019 annual report 12 months ago, no
one would have imagined the impact COVID-19 pandemic
would have had on the global economy, resulting in changes
in the way we went about our daily lives. There is no
precedent for the current situation and its impact on the
global economy. However, with the development of vaccines
and vaccination programs now available, we hope that we
can return to some form of normality, albeit, a new normal.
Sanvo Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company” or
“SANVO Fine Chemicals”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”
or “us”) sincerely hopes you, your families and friends remain
safe and well, despite these still irying times.

6 | ANNUAL REPORT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Principal business

The Group is an established fine industrial chemical products
manufacturer based in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").
The Group focuses principally on the manufacture, research and
development, and sale of a diversified portfolio of fine industrial
chemical products, which can serve a range of purposes, including
as hardware and building materials and fowards automotive
maintenance. The Group's products can be broadly categorised into
the following segments: (i) aerosols, (i) organic silicone adhesives, (iii)
synthetfic adhesives, and (iv) other miscellaneous products such as
architectural coatings, oil products and wood painfts.

The Group has two principal lines of business operations, namely the
manufacture and sale of fine industrial chemical products: (i) under
the brands of “SANVO =" and “FullTeam ZM@E", and (i) on an
original equipment manufacturing (“OEM”) basis whereby products
are manufactured in accordance with the customer’'s design and
specification and are marketed under the customer’s brand name.

For FY2020, the Group's ftotal production output was approximately
54,800 tonnes as compared to FY2019 of approximately 53,800
fonnes. Aerosols related products remain as the major revenue
source of the Group which accounted for over approximately 63% of
the Group's total revenue for FY2020 (2019: 59%).

Information on employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 957 employees (31
December 2019: 881), including the executive Directors. The
Group’s total employee benefit expenses (including Directors’
remuneration and salaries in research and development expenses)
were approximately RMB89,560,000 for FY2020 (2019: RMB78,758,000).
Employee benefit expenses comprised of (i) salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind, (i) discretionary bonus, and (iii) retirement benefit
scheme contributions.

The recent outbreak of COVID-19 has a significant impact on
global and regional economy (i.e. currency fluctuation, femporary
suspension of operation and logistic arrangements and etc.). The
Group's sales activity was affected in the 1st quarter in FY2020
(subsequently resumed from the 2nd quarter in FY2020). In fact the
Group has been benefited from the outbreak of COVID-19 after
resumption of its business, i) as some of the domestic operators
in the PRC were not able fto financially sustain their business in
the 1st half of FY2020 and as a result, there were excessive raw
material inventories in the market, thus, the price of these raw
materials dropped significantly, ii) in addition, some of the overseas
manufacturers were not able to deliver customers’ order and the
Group's OEM export orders was increased over approximately 31%
from approximately RMB25,090,000 for FY2019 to approximately
RMB32,894,000 for FY2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)
Market development and expansion

i) Apart from the expansion plan of our production site located
at Shazi Industrial Park, Minzhong Town, Zhongshan City,
Guangdong, the PRC (the "MV Production Site”), the Group
is infending to expand its market reach to Central China in
future, concerning the growth in domestic provinces and
geographical advantage in logistic arrangements with
distributors in Eastern China, Northwest and Northeast China.
The Group is actively looking for development opportunities
in authorised industrial park areas in Central China which is
suitable for the manufacturing of chemical related products.

ii) The Group has a plan to expand its product sales by entering
into construction industry in view of the strong growth of the
property development sector in the PRC, thus, the product
utilisation and furnaround rates are more significant than
wholesale/retail network. The Group has established a wholly
own foreign entity, Fuvo Construction (Guangdong) Limited on
26 February 2021, with designated personnel to manage and
develop this business line.

The Group will continue to focus on the development of (i) the
domestic sales network and overseas OEM customers, (i) the MV
Production Site development, (iii) market expansion in Central China
and construction industry.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The total revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB839,989,000 for FY2020, representing an increase of
approximately 3.2% from approximately RMB814,016,000 for FY2019.
The increase of revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in
average selling price of the Group’s products.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB268,943,000 for FY2020, representing an increase of
approximately 19.8% from approximately RMB224,532,000 for FY2019.
Gross profit margin increased from approximately 27.6% for FY2019
to approximately 32.0% for FY2020. The above increase was primarily
due to the decrease in average unit cost of sales arising from the
decrease in purchase price of raw materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group increased from approximately
RMB2,944,000 for FY2019 to approximately RMB5,390,000 for
FY2020. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the
Government subsidies and interest income subsequent to the receipt
of IPO proceeds.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group for FY2020 was
approximately RMB103,725,000, remained at the same level as to
FY2019 of approximately RMB102,135,000.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased from approximately
RMB80,843,000 for FY2019 to approximately RMB92,886,000 for
FY2020. The increase was mainly due to the increase (i) employee
benefit expenses, (i) corporate expenses subsequent to listing and
(iii) written-off of property, plant and equipment.

Listing expenses

The Group has fully recognised the remaining IPO listing expenses
in FY2019 of approximately RMB12,753,000 and no such expenses in
FY2020.

Finance costs

Finance costs of the Group decreased from approximately
RMB4,379,000 for FY2019 to approximately RMB3,785,000 for FY2020.
The reason for the decrease was caused by the increase in inferest
expenses being capitalised into property, plant and equipment in
FY2020.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense of the Group increased from approximately
RMB2,789,000 for FY2019 to approximately RMB7,841,000 for FY2020.
The increase was mainly due to an increase in the tax provision for
Group's assessable profits in FY2020.

Profit for the year

The Group's profit for FY2020 attributable fo owners of the Company
was approximately RMB65,820,000, representing an increase of
approximately 175.0% as compared to the profit for FY2019 of
approximately RMB23,935,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDENDS

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per
ordinary share for FY2020 (FY2019 HK2.4 cents), subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meetfing (the "AGM”).

The Board endeavours to strike a balance between the interests
of the shareholders and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. In proposing any dividends, the Board
shall take into consideration, among others, the following factors:

1. operations and financial performance;

2. business development;

3. prospects;

4. capital requirements;

5. economic outline; and

6. any other factors that the Board consider appropriate.

The Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
fime.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Capital structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 16 January 2020 (the “Listing Date"”) and there
has been no change in capital structure of the Group since then.

Liquidity and financial resource

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately
RMB2,431,000 as of 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB74,269,000). The
current ratio, calculated by dividing the current assets by current
liabilities, was approximately 0.99 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
0.72). The decrease in net current liabilities was primarily due to (i)
increase in trade and bills receivables and (ii) increase in cash and
cash equivalents derived from our operation and IPO proceeds.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and financial resource (Continued)

The gearing ratio, calculated by dividing total borrowings by equity
of the Group, was approximately 0.8 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
1.5). The decrease of approximately 46.7% was mainly attributable
tfo the increase in the fotal equity as a result of (i) increase in share
capital and share premium subsequent to the Listing and (ii) profit
for the year of approximately RMB65,820,000 recorded in FY2020.

For FY2020, the Group had funded its growth principally from cash
generated from the sale of ifs products and debt financing, and
the Group had generated sufficient cash and cash equivalents to
meet its capital requirements. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had cash and bank deposits (including pledged bank deposits) of
approximately RMB115,235,000 (2019: RMB39,468,000).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy. The Board closely monitors the Group's
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's
assefts, liabilities, and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements all the time.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during FY2020 are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties. The following
are the key risks and uncertainties faced by the Group:

Price of Raw Materials

Our production process requires reliable and stable sources of large
quantities of raw materials from third parties. We generally maintain
a certain level of inventory of our raw materials for future production
or to meet future demand according to our production plan and
we do not have hedging arrangements against fluctuations in raw
material prices and therefore we bear the risks associated with raw
material cost fluctuations. The pricing of our raw materials is also
sensitive to supply disruptions, general economic conditions, and
many other factors that are beyond our control. We expect the
prices of some of our key raw materials may increase in the future.
If we are unable to reflect increases in the price of raw materials
efficiently or adequately in the selling prices of our products, our cost
base may increase, which may lead to a reduction in our gross profit
margin, and the operating results for our products may be materially
and adversely affected.

Market Risks

The market in which we operate is highly competitive and
fragmented. Competitive factors include product quality, price,
design and development capability, timely delivery, valuable
service, scale and capacity, and efficiency. We face competition
from existing and new players in the fine industrial chemicals
industry worldwide, including numerous manufacturers in the PRC
and elsewhere which offer similar fine industrial chemical products
at lower prices than we do, as well as other enterprises which offer
an increasing number of related products which could be used as
substitutes for our products.

We expect competition in our industry to intensify in the future.
There can be no assurance that we can stay competitive due to
improvements by our competitors or other factors. To compete
effectively, we may be forced, among other actions, fo reduce
prices, provide more sales incentives fo customers and increase
capital expenditures in our labour force, plant, property and
equipment. Any infensification of the competition or failure by us to
compete successfully with our competitors could have an adverse
impact on the demand for, and pricing of, our products, and as
a result, could result in a reduction of our market share and have
an adverse effect on our business, financial condifion, results of
operations and prospects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Compliance Risks

Under relevant PRC laws and regulatfions, we are required to hold
various licences and permits in order fo conduct our business. We are
also required to comply with applicable regulations and standards
in relation to our production and the quality of our products. These
registrations, licenses, permits and certificates may only be valid
for a limited period of fime and may be subject fo periodic reviews
and renewal by the relevant authorities. Failure to comply with
these laws and regulations, or the loss of or failure fo renew our
licences and permits or any change in the government policies,
could lead to temporary or permanent suspension of some of our
business operations or the imposition of penalfies on us, which could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

BANK BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings in aggregate of approximately
RMB171,9206,000 (2019: bank borrowings of approximately
RMB124,810,000). The interest rate of the relevant borrowings was
charged in the range of 4.90% to 6.47% per annum for FY2020 (2019:
5.56% to 6.47% per annum).

As at 31 December 2020, the total pledged bank deposits of the
Group of approximately RMB38,067,000 (2019: RMB23,000,000) were
placed with a bank as securities for, amongst others, issues of bills
payables for the Group’s purchase of raw materials and guarantee
to complete construction work for the right-of-use assets acquired in
prior years.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings were secured by the following
assets:

Property, plant and equipment mE - BER&E
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Inventories 78

All personal guarantees and securities provided by Mr. Ernest Chen,
the controlling shareholder of the Company and an executive
Director, and Mr. Leo Chen, an executive Director, as at 31
December 2019 for our interest-bearing bank borrowings had been
released subsequently.

14 | ANNUAL REPORT

:nlll'

i

BEER WA

TEREBRAEEMN(E)
BRAR

REEETEZRZ AR  RABAKEZHRREIFA N
ETRM2EE - BT AETERRMEERERE S
ZBRERNGE - ZEELHE R SR RES AR
ER—ERARMEANGR - AL rT5E7A R BRI KEEE Hig
BEEE - BRETHEREIER  EXKBELER
Bz AR 7R AT iﬂWﬁMZEHEWﬁT%\ﬁﬁ
Pz BN KL EERIOKAMPEHNEFIERE -

ATRE T B AP 2 B B R I E R T A R o

RITERREEEA
RZB_TFEFT_A=1T—R  AREZFSRITERR
Hiptg e X RARK171,906,000 (= F— N5

RITIERAARE124,810,0007T) « R-ZE-ZTFHK
FEBBERRENT490%E6.47% (ZF — N5 -
5.56% % 6.47%) 2 FHIEEB o

RITB-ZZF+-A=+—H AEBEZEERRTF
REBEHNR/ARE38,067000(ZE—NEF: ARK
23,000,0007T) * fER(EFBRE) AEERNBEFREET
ENEBEABERMAARERTKERAEEENZET

12 o

R=T T-n4g+-A=+—0  AEEHE
R MO TSI AT

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT NEBFT
30,374 37,967
85,743 89,093

- 16,406

AR AHER B RFHITEERMBEE RNITESRMNRE
FER—T-NAFT-A=+—HB/EMNERITER
REZMABAERRERBREOCHER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Majority of the Group’s transaction are settled in RMB in the PRC, the
Directors are of the view that the Group's foreign exchange rate risks
are not significant. The Group had not entered into any derivative
contracts to hedge against the foreign exchange rate risk for FY2020
and FY2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital commitments related to capital expenditures for acquisition
and construction of property, plant and equipment which the
Group has confracted for but not yet incurred, which amounted
to approximately RMB86,031,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
RMB26,936,000).

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
OR DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

During FY2020, the Group did not have any significant investment
held, any material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies apart from the corporate reorganisation as
disclosed in the Prospectus.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the Group did not have other future
plans for material investments or capital assets during FY2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
the Listing Date at the offer price of HK$1.3 per share and the net
proceeds raised from this initial public offering, after deducting
the related underwriting commissions and other estimated listing
expenses payable by the Company, amounted to approximately
HK$75.2 million (the “IPO Proceeds”). The IPO Proceeds are intended
to be utilised in accordance with the proposed application as set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus.

As at the date of this annual report, the utilisation of the IPO
Proceeds was as follows:

Investment in new manufacturing facility at the MV
Production Site

Sales and marketing activities to enhance brand
recognition in the PRC and overseas ZHERMSHEED

Working capital and other general corporate purpose

Total ok

As at the date of this annual report, the unutilised proceeds were
placed in interest-bearing deposits with authorised financial
institutions or licensed banks in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Directors regularly evaluate the Group's business objective and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition to
ascertain the business growth of the Group. From the Listing Date
up to the date of this annual report, the Board considered that no
modification of the use of proceeds described in the Prospectus was
required. The balance of the unutilised proceeds are expected to
be fully utilised in the end of 2021.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chen Bingqgiang

Mr. Chen Binggiang (“Mr. Ernest Chen”), aged 52, is the chief
executive officer, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board, a member of the remuneration committee and the elder
brother of Mr. Leo Chen, an executive Director. Mr. Ernest Chen
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group. He was
appointed as a Director on 12 April 2018 and redesignated as an
executive Director on 15 April 2019. Mr. Ernest Chen is also a director
of other members of the Group.

Mr. Ermest Chen has over 17 years of experience in the chemicals
industry. Mr. Ernest Chen worked as a director in Foshan City Shunde
District Sanvo Industrial Co., Ltd.* (LM IEEE =FEEXEGRAF)
(“Foshan Sanvo”), a company engaged in the manufacture of
plastic products, textiles, knitwear, auto parts and interior decoration
materials from March 1995 to June 2007, where he was mainly
responsible for the overall management of the company. He joined
the Group in April 2002. Mr. Ernest Chen graduated from the China
Pharmaceutical University in Jiangsu province with a bachelor's
degree in science, majoring in chemical pharmaceutics in July
1991, and from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a master’s
degree in business administration in November 2016.

Mr. Ernest Chen was a legal representative of Foshan Sanvo,
a company established in the PRC which was deregistered in
accordance with PRC laws in June 2007. Mr. Ernest Chen was also
a supervisor of Beijing Shangshan Zhiyuan Chemical Technology
Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (dt R EFEBGR(E TRMHAERERAR), a
company established in the PRC and engaged in engineering and
technology research and experimental development, which was
deregistered in accordance with PRC laws in August 2015. He was
also an executive Director and manager of Zhongshan Fullteam
Chemical Co., Ltd*(FRILxBE{EEHFRAE ), a company established in
the PRC and engaged in production, sales and research of among
other things, water based paint and water based high performance
resin which was deregistered in accordance with PRC Laws in March
2019.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. Chen Bingqgiang (Continued)

Mr. Ernest Chen has been a registered pharmacist as recognised
by the Shunde City Science and Technology Bureau* (I8 & m &l
HB)in the PRC since July 1993. He has also been accredited as
an intermediate engineer by the Guangdong Coating Industry
Association (EREZR1T¥% 2 ) in the PRC since July 2015. Mr. Ernest
Chen was also co-awarded with Mr. Leo Chen the accredited
patent award of Zhongshan for a product named “nano mildew
neutral silicone sealant” in July 2012.

Mr. Chen Bingyao

Mr. Chen Bingyao (“Mr. Leo Chen"”), aged 47, is an executive
Director, a member of the nomination committee and the younger
brother of Mr. Ernest Chen, an executive Director. He is also the
chief technical engineer of the Group. Mr. Leo Chen is primarily
responsible for overseeing our overall management, research and
development, quality control of the products offered by the Group.
He was appointed as a Director on 12 April 2018 and redesignated
as an executive Director on 15 April 2019.

Mr. Leo Chen is also a director of Zhongshan Minhe Chemical
Industry Technology Limited* (1 U R Mt TR BER 2 @ ),
Guangdong Sanvo Holdings Co., Limited* (BE =MZEBRER A7)
and Guangdong Fuvo Industrial Co., Limited* (BEREMEXABR L
7)) (“Guangdong Fuvo"); and a supervisor of Guangdong Sanvo,
Guangdong Fullteam Chemicals Limited* (EERZER(LEFR A7) and
Guangdong Shunde Sanvo Chemical Industry Technology Limited*
(BERIBER=FAUtTHRRAF).

Mr. Leo Chen has over 16 years of experience in the chemicals
industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in Guangdong
Mediworld Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company engaged
in research, development, manufacture, and sale of Chinese
medicines, as a technician from July 1997 to May 1999, where he
was responsible for production and technical guidance of drug
manufacture. He then worked as an engineer at Foshan Sanvo, from
June 1999 to July 2002. Since August 2002, he has been a senior
engineer in charge of supervision of the technology development
at Guangdong Sanvo and was subsequently promoted to person-in-
charge of project development (all-purpose adhesives and paints
and coatfings) in July 2005. Mr. Leo Chen graduated from the China
Pharmaceutical University in Jiangsu province with a diploma in
chemical pharmaceutics in July 1997.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. Chen Bingyao (Continued)

Mr. Leo Chen has been a senior chemical engineer as recognised
by the Human Resources and Social Security Department of
Guangdong Province (BHRE A N EFRMLERER)In the PRC since
November 2014. He was appointed as the committee member of
the Chemical Engineering Testing Specialised Committee of the
Shenzhen Analytical and Testing Committee* CRIITT T AR 2 EE
S THRRMEEXZES®) from May 2013 to May 2016. In March 2015,
Mr. Leo Chen was appointed as a member of the Energy Testing
Solutions Professional Working Group of the National Committee of
Standard Product Quality Testing Monitoring Methods* (2 BERE £
EESHEMRBRAAEECRNEZESRIRRRBREEETEE). M. Leo
Chen was also co-awarded with Mr. Ernest Chen the accredited
patent award of Zhongshan for a product named “nano mildew
neutral silicone sealant” in July 2012.

Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun

Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun (“Mr. Ng"), aged 44, is an executive Director
and the company secretary of the Company. Mr. Ng is primarily
responsible for management of investor relationship, strategic
planning, business development and company secretarial
matters of the Group. He has been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company since 7 August 2018 and an executive
Director since 15 April 2019. Mr. Ng has been a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since July 2011 as well as a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia since August 2004.

Mr. Ng has been a director of MN CPA Limited, Certified Public
Accountants since May 2012, a director of MN Corporate Services
Limited since July 2011, a company engaged in providing business
consultancy services and an executive director of Credit Intelligence
Limited since 29 December 2020, an ASX listed company engaged
in debft-restructuring, personal insolvency, money lending and buy
now pay later business in Australia, Hong Kong and Singapore. Mr.
Ng is primarily responsible for strategic planning and merger and
acquisition matters.

From August 2007 to January 2011, Mr. Ng worked in Grant Thornton,
an auditing firm where his last position was Senior Manager in the
Assurance Division. Due to a merger between Grant Thornton and
BDO Limited, he was fransferred to BDO Limited and employed as
Senior Manager from January 2011 to July 2011.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ir. Daniel Lai

Ir. Daniel Lai (“Ir. Lai"), BBS, JP, aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 13 December 2019, and is
responsible for providing independent advice and judgment to the
Board. Ir. Lai is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
as well as a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee.

Ir. Lai has over 40 years of experience in the information technology
sector. Ir. Lai has also been a director of PRD IT Cooperation
and Exchange Centre Company Limited, a company engaged
in fostering collaboration between information technology
professionals in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area since October
2015. He has been a director of Digital Technology and Consultancy
Company Limited since March 2016, a company engaged in
information technology consultancy, education and advisory
services. He has also been a member of the governing council of the
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, an organisation established
by the Hong Kong Government to help industry and commence in
the development of quality, environmental, safety, hygiene, social
and other management systems standards since November 2017.
From June 1978 to January 1999, he has held various positions at The
Hong Kong Jockey Club (formerly known as The Royal Hong Kong
Jockey Club) and Hong Kong Jockey Club Systems (Australia) Pty.
Ltd., respectively, with his last position as the IT facilities management
conftroller. From February 1999 to December 2011, he was the head
of information technology of MTR Corporation Limited (a company
listed on the Main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0066).
From January 2012 to January 2015, Ir. Lai was the Government Chief
Information Officer of the Hong Kong Government. From March 2015
to September 2015, he was the interim vice president (administration)
in the office of the president of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
From September 2015 to September 2017, he was the professor
of practice (computing) in the department of computing of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ir. Lai graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a diploma in management studies
(commercial) in November 1975 and from the Griffith University in
Australia with a master’'s degree in technology management in
March 1995.

Ir. Lai has been a distinguished fellow member of the Hong Kong
Computer Society since February 2005, a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Engineers since July 2012, a fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since August 2015, and a full member of the
Hong Kong Management Association since March 1995. In July 2004,
Ir. Lai was awarded the bronze bauhinia star and he was appointed
a justice of peace in July 2001. Further, he has held various public
service positions such as the president of the Hong Kong Computer
Society from 1988 to 2004, and the chairman of the Department
of Computing Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University from April 2012 to April 2014.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. Xu Kai

Mr. Xu Kai (“Mr. Xu”), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 13 December 2019, and is responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. Mr. Xu is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of
the audit commifttee and the remuneratfion committee.

Mr. Xu has over 24 years of experience in the field of chemistry. He
has been a Professor of Polymer Chemistry and Physics, researcher
and deputy head of the Guangdong Specialised Laboratory of
Electronic Organic Polymer Materials* (B R & & T+ A ZE AWM &
& 2 & % ¥ )under the Guangzhou Chemical Laboratory of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences since May 2009, where he was
responsible for management of the laboratory. From May 1997 to
December 2001, he was the head of the Department of Technology
of the Guangzhou Chemical Laboratory of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences* (# B &} 2 Fr & M (b 2 K T &L & ), where he was
responsible for management of the laboratory. From March 1995 to
December 1996, he was the secretary of the Specialised Laboratory
of Cellulose Chemistry* (4 # =/t 2 &= B & 5 = ) under the Chinese
Academy of Sciences where he was responsible for administration
of the laboratory. Mr. Xu graduated from the Guangzhou Chemical
Laboratory of the Chinese Academy of Sciences in Beijing with a
doctoral degree in polymer chemistry and physics and a master’s
degree in polymer chemistry and physics in March 2005 and June
1991, respectively.

Mr. Xu has been a member of the Specialised Committee of
Coating* (32 ¥ = #¥ % 8 & )under the Chemical Industry and
Engineering Society of Guangdong since September 2008. He is also
the deputy head of the Centre of Functional High Polymer Materials
and Fine Chemicals of Foshan City* (5L IhEE= » T+ kAR L £
@mEE ) under the Chinese Academy of Sciences and has been
the reviewer of various international academic journals since 2005.
Mr. Xu was awarded the Silver Award for Science and Technology
Progress in Guangdong* (ER & BHE#E =5 4)in July 2009.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David

Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 39, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 13 December 2019,
and is responsible for providing independent advice and judgment
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and
a member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee.

Mr. Yeung has over 14 years of experience in accounting and tax
advisory. Mr. Yeung has been a director and the managing partner
of D & Partners CPA Limited since September 2017. From July 2004
to September 2017, Mr. Yeung worked in Cheng & Cheng Limited,
Certified Public Accountants with his last position as a director.
Mr. Yeung graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor of business administration in accountancy in November
2004.

Mr. Yeung has been an independent non-executive director of Aeso
Holding Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 8341) since 12 April 2019 and Nexion Technologies
Limited (o company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8420) since 10 September 2020. From December 2014 to
March 2017, Mr. Yeung served as an independent non-executive
director of Mega Expo Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1360 and currently
known as NOVA Group Holdings Limited).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Ms. Wen Guihong

Ms. Wen Guihong (“Ms. Wen"), aged 40, was appointed as the head
of finance of the Company on 1 January 2021, and is responsible for
the day to day management of financial and accounting matters
of the Group.

After graduated from the lJilin University in financial accounting, Ms.
Wen joined the Group in 2003 and served as a purchaser. She was
responsible for the procurement of daily advertising materials. She
served as the manager of advertising from 2006 to 2007, where she
was responsible for daily operations of the advertising activities; the
manager of finance department of our production site from 2008 to
2014, where she was responsible for the day to day management
of financial matters of the production site; the manager of strategic
planning department from 2015 to 2017; and the manager of the
Group's accountfing department from 2018 fo 2020, where she
was responsible for the day to day matters of the accounting
department.

Mr. Han Wanyu

Mr. Han Wanyu (“Mr. Han”), aged 47, was appointed as the head of
logistics and operations of the Company on 1 January 2017, and is
responsible for the daily management of logistical and operational
matters of the Group.

Mr. Han has over 21 years of experience in the logistics and
operational management sector. From July 1997 to February 2008,
Mr. Han worked at Haixin Kelong Electronic Appliance Company
Limited* CEERIESERM AR AF) (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0921 and currently known
as Hisense Home Appliances Group Co., Ltd.), a company engaged
in the manufacture of refrigerators, air conditioners, cooling
cabinets and other white goods with his last position as a logistics
manager. From February 2008 to May 2009, he was the director of
logistics of the logistics department of Guangdong Zhida Textile
and Decorations Limited* (ER HEFHHEBFR A F), a company
engaged in curfains and bedding manufacturing. From June 2009 to
February 2014, Mr. Han was the director of logistics of Guangdong
Xinyao Photoelectric Limited* (BRFTBXBR N AR AF), a company
engaged in auxiliary battery receiver components and power
generation systems. Mr. Han joined Guangdong Sanvo in March 2014
and has been the head of logistics and operations since January
2017. Mr. Han graduated from the Foshan University (1L} 2Rl
ft) in Guangdong Province in the PRC with a certificate in law in
January 2009.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Zhong Ruiqgin

Ms. Zhong Ruigin (“Mr. Zhong"”), aged 43, was appointed as the
head of administration on 1 March 2016, and is responsible for the
daily management of administrative and human resources matters
of the Group.

Ms. Zhong has over 22 years of work experience. From July 1997 to
December 2007 she worked at Haixin Kelong Electrical Appliance
Company Limited*((8EEIEERZRMBR A ) (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0921
and currently known as Hisense Home Appliances Group Co.,
Ltd.), a company engaged in the manufacture of refrigerators,
air conditioners, cooling cabinets and other white goods, as
a quality control team leader, where she was responsible for
managing product quality. Ms. Zhong joined Guangdong Sanvo
in March 2013 as a member of the factory office and has been
our head of administration since 1 March 2016. Ms. Zhong studied
human resources af the Peking University in Beijing in the PRC and
graduated with a diploma in June 2017.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Ai Shuyi

Mr. Ai Shuyi (“Mr. Ai”), aged 39, was appointed as the head of
production of the Company in October 2011 and is responsible
for the daily management of our factories and production related
matters of the Group.

Mr. Ai has over 21 years of experience in the production and
manufacturing sector. From October 1998 to December 1999, he
served as the maintenance technician of Sichuan Chongzhou City
Pearl Water-proof Building Materials Company Limited* (P9)I15=M
BRI K EZEMB AR AT ), a company engaged in glass asbestos
tiles and asbestos fibers. From February 2000 to August 2002, he
was the head of maintenance of Sichuan Chengdu Qianfeng
Water Heater Company Limited* (P0)I| 5k #B AT & Ak s AR A A ), a
company engaged in household electric and gas water heaters
where he was responsible for overseeing installation works. From
December 2002 to October 2003, he was the head of electronics
installation and engineering of Sichuan Mechanical and Electrical
Installation Engineering Company Limited* (P01 #EZE TEBRE A7),
a company engaged in electrical equipment installation where he
was responsible for overseeing installation works. From January 2004
to September 2011, Mr. Ai worked at Guangdong Sanvo with his
last position as the production manager where he was responsible
for production management. Mr. Ai joined Guangdong Fuvo as
the head of production in October 2011 and since August 2018
he has been a director of Guangdong Fuvo where he responsible
for factory and production management. Mr. Ai graduated from
Shunde Polytechnic* (JEfEH; 2 % flT2 7 ) in Guangdong Province in
the PRC with a diploma in business administration in June 2011.

In recognition of his confribution and achievement in the industrial
chemical production sector, Mr. Ai was awarded the Top 10 Excellent
Staff Model*(+ £ &% & T #Z & )by the municipal government of
Zhongshan in September 2010.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 7 August 2018.

Please refer to the subsection headed “Directors — Executive
Directors” in this section for Mr. Ng's biography.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is an
established fine industrial chemical products manufacturer based
in the PRC. The principal activities of the Group are researching,
developing, manufacturing and sales of a diversified portfolio
of fine industrial chemical products, which can serve a range of
purposes, including as hardware and towards building materials and
automotive maintenance.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities,
including a business review for FY2020, and an indication of the likely
future developments of the Group’s business can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis
as set out on pages 8 to 16 of this annual report. These discussions
from part of this directors’ report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to its corporate and social responsibility in
promoting a sustainable and environmentally friendly environment.
The Group strives to minimise the environmental impact in daily
course of business.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and
performance are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company on pages 56 to 81 of this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group. To the
best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during
FY2020, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group. The Group has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
Relationship with customers

We have long-term and well-established relationships with the
majority of our major customers. We had established relationships
with our five largest customers who have been conducting business
with us for an average of more than eight years. We believe
that being able to maintain long-term customer relationships
demonstrates the Group's ability to provide high-quality products on
time and enables us to maintain our extensive distribution channels
and network.

The Group'’s largest customer and five largest customers for FY2020
accounted for approximately 3.9% and 12.5% respectively of the
Group's total turnover for FY2020.

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interests in the five
largest customers at any fime during FY2020.

Relationship with suppliers

We believe that our industry reputation and on-fime settlement help
us in building a stable network of suppliers which cover all aspects
of the Group's raw materials needs. Establishing a good relationship
with major suppliers enables the Group to have more flexibility
in resources allocation compared with our competitors. We had
established relationships with our five largest suppliers who have
been conducting business with us for an average of over eleven
years. We believe our established relationships also enables us to
procure the necessary supplies when we require them, reducing
the risk of shortage or delay in delivery of materials or services
causing material disruption to our works. The Directors consider that
parfnering with these suppliers is one of the key success factors for us
to deliver high quality products in a timely manner to our customers.

The Group's largest supplier and five largest suppliers for FY2020
accounted for approximately 7.9% and 21.9% respectively of the
Group's total purchases for the year.

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any interests in the five
largest suppliers at any time during FY2020.

Relationship with employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and provides them with a safe and healthy workplace
and other developmental training and has proper whistle blowing
procedures.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “"Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, there were no significant events
after the reporting period up to the date of this annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for FY2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents (2019: HK2.4 cents) per Share for FY2020 to the shareholders of
the Company.

The proposed final dividend for FY2020 has been approved at
the Company’s Board meeting on 23 March 2021 and is subject
to approval by shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. Details of the dividends for FY2020 are
set forth in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company for FY2020 are set out
in Nofte 26 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during FY2020 are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, share premium
of the Company is available for distributions or paying dividends to
the shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association (“Articles”) and a statutory solvency test.
Pursuant to the Articles, dividends may be declared and paid out
of the profits of the Company or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared
or paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the
applicable law of the Cayman Islands.

28 | ANNUAL REPORT

ESEWRE

BERMRER

BAFHRIEEEN wEINT ] —SHAREEI  BEH
BREEAFHRAPYELREMEREL

ES

AEE T _TEHRFENEEHINAREES2ER
MK

KEKRE

é%ﬁt I‘Vl& _Jﬁxﬁx)fﬁéf?fyﬁﬁﬁﬂlirfﬁﬁﬂx

EE_ T _TFMBEERAREERARRE_T_—
FZA-T=ZHBTNESE SR LIUE  EAFRER
Zlif‘ﬂﬁg)zﬁﬁﬁﬁj(‘\iﬁt/&é AR - BT

ZEPRFERENFBERAFRE A MEHKRM T
12°

MHRE

AEBSOREMRFENEEALEENBEH2EN
RERIMTEHE |46 -

@S

ARBAR—Z-_ZFUBEFEENRAFHBEENAFRIES
AR IRERMITE 26

f#tE

$ AR —_Z_TFUBRFEZREBEEDERBRAFR
Aﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%%‘ﬁﬂ RERSEEER  ARFZK
173 (B AR R E KM S B A2 A RN (THR R ) 2 48 5E
EREEEENEDAANERT - BRARRKERL
AR  IRIBAA - ATEIRE S A AR R ZEMN AT
HEBEERATEFZ AN PG - EEBREROL
T TR BRERERIIRBER SR EERER AL
B2 EAEMESREFTEREAXMRE



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PROFITS AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

Profit available for distribution of the Company as at 31 December
2020, calculated under Part 6 of the Companies Ordinance,
amounted to RMB92,490,000 (31 December 2019: RMB26,472,000).

ISSUE OF SHARES

For information on the Company’s issue of shares, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Offer” of
this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During FY2020, the Company did not enfer into any equity-linked
agreements in respect of the Shares.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During FY2020, the Group made charitable donatfions amounted to
RMB1,083,000 (Year 2019: RMB79,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-empftive rights under the Arficles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

During FY2020 and up fo the date of this annual report, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Mr. Chen Binggiang Executive Director, chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer

Mr. Chen Bingyao Executive Director

Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun

Ir.  Daniel Lai

Mr. Xu Kai

Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David Independent non-executive Director

Executive Director
Independent non-executive Director
Independent non-executive Director

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 25 of this annual report.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun and Mr. Yeung
Chun Yue David shall refire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and they, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service contract
with the Company on 13 December 2019 for a term of three years
commencing on the Listing Date, until terminated by either party
giving noft less than three months’ nofice in wrifing to the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had entered into
an appointment letter with the Company on 13 December 2019 for
a ferm of three years commencing on Listing Datfe, until ferminated
by either party giving not less than three months’ nofice in writing to
the other.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in Note 29 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, no
fransactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of FY2020 or at any time during FY2020.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

There has been no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules during FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE COMPANY IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this annual report, the Directors and the chief
executive had the following inferests in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company, its Group members and/
or associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the "SFO"), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant fo the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

Interest of controlled
corporation
REEZEMN#ER

Mr. Chen Binggiang
(Note 2)
BRI LA

(FzE2)

Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, so far as was known to the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than the interests disclosed above in respect of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) has, or is deemed fo have,
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO are set out below:

Capacity/nature of interest

5%/ RENE

Beneficial owner

EREBA

Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited (Note 2)
Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited (F{#2)

Ms. Liang Yinsheng (Note 3)
PR L (5E3)

Interest of spouse
EEER

Notes:
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position.

(2) Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Binggiang.
Mr. Chen Binggiang is deemed to be interested in the 314,000,000
Shares held by Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(3)  Ms. Liang Yinsheng, the spouse of Mr. Chen Binggiang, is deemed to be
interested in the 314,000,000 Shares held by Mr. Chen Binggiang through
his controlled corporation, Sanvo Fine Chemicals Limited.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During FY2020, none of the Directors, directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries, controlling shareholders of the Company or their
respective associates, had interests in business (apart from the
business of the Group) which competes or is likely to compete either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group which would
require disclosure pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the Articles. Such provisions were in force throughout
FY2020 and are currently in force. The Company has arranged for
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions that may be brought against the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No confracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
enfered into or existed during FY2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme conditionally adopted by the written resolutions of our
Shareholders passed on 13 December 2019. The terms of the Share
Option Scheme are in compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules.

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the confributions the
Eligible Parficipants (as defined below) have had or may have
made to the Group. The Share Optfion Scheme will provide the
Eligible Participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i)  aftracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth
of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Eligible Participant

The Board may, aft its discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
for such number of new Shares as the Board may determine at an
exercise price determined in accordance with paragraph below to
the following persons (“Eligible Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any Directors (including non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries;

(i)  any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group, the assessment
criteria of which are:

(aa) contribution to the development and performance of the
Group;

(bb) quality of work performed for the Group;

(cc) initiative and commitment in performing his duties; and

(dd) length of service or contribution to the Group.
Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of Shares pursuant to which options may be
granted under the Share Opfion Scheme shall not exceed 42,750,000
Shares, which represented 10% of the then issued share capital of
the Company as at the Listing Date and the date of this annual
report. This limit may be renewed at any time provided that the new
limit must not exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at
the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the renewal.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any fime must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes
of the Company if such grant will result in this 30% limit being
exceeded.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall fo be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Time of exercise of option and duration of the Share Option Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of ten years from that date. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised will be determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be
exercised more than ten years after it has been granted. No option
may be granted more than 10 years after the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders of the Company
on 13 December 2019 (the "Adoption Date”). Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Adoption Date.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An opfion shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee when the duplicate offer document constituting
acceptance of the options duly signed by the grantee, together
with a remittance of nominal consideration of HK$1.00, is received
by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance date. Such
payment shall in no circumstances be refundable. Any offer for grant
of an option to subscribe for Shares may be accepted in respect
of less than the number of Shares for which it is offered provided
that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares
on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such
number is clearly stated in the duplicate offer document constituting
acceptance of the option.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the
Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Share Option Scheme for FY2020 and there was no outstanding
share option as at 31 December 2020.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES

At no fime during FY2020 was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party
tfo any arrangement fo enable the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to have any right to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, no controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for the
provision of services to the Company or not) to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during FY2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during FY2020 are set out in Note 29
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

The related party transactions set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected fransactions” (as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) which are fully exempted from the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During FY2020, the Group did not conduct any continuing
connected transaction (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) which is subject to shareholders’ approval, reporting and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold its forthcoming annual general meeting on
Thursday, 17 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM"), the notice of which will be
published and despatched to our shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF BOOK FOR REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
DIVIDEND PAYMENT

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders of the Company
to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 11 June 2021 to Thursday,
17 June 2021 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer
of Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 10 June 2021.
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CLOSURE OF BOOK FOR REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND
DIVIDEND PAYMENT (CONTINUED)

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders of the Company
to the proposed final dividend, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 28 June 2021 to Wednesday,
30 June 2021 (both dates inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered.

In order to be eligible fo be entitled to the proposed final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates and
tfransfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
25 June 2021.

Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, the proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid on or about Friday, 9 July 2021.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for FY2020 have been audited by Moore
Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore Hong Kong”) who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of Moore Hong Kong as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at 2021 AGM.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Binggiang
Chairman

Guangdong, China, 23 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate
governance in management and internal procedures so as fo
achieve effective accountability. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on principles and code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from
code provision A.2.1, the Company had complied with all the
code provisions (the "Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during FY2020.

Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Ernest Chen
is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company. In view that Mr. Ernest Chen has been assuming day-
to-day responsibilities in operating and managing the Group, the
Board believes that with the support of Mr. Ernest Chen’s extensive
experience and knowledge in the business of the Group, vesting the
roles of both chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
in Mr. Ernest Chen strengthens the solid and consistent leadership
and thereby allows for efficient business planning and decision
which is in the best interest to the Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code is appropriate in such circumstances.
Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group's operations,
and sufficient checks and balances are in place. The Directors are
commifted fo achieving high standards of corporate governance
with a view to safeguarding the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Board will continue to review and
consider segregating the roles of chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking info account the circumstances
of the Group as a whole.

TRE

b

HE

EXERARFEEERHEERANEFZEZE - K
ERAMMEE - ARBIZEEERTRTYIA LT RAIM
TomEtEERTR((REERTR D&M 2 RA K
SRRSO R ERE ©

RRBFER » Bl 8 <7 BSOS A2 16850 - RRRIR
“E_TFEPREFESET EMARAME+HME(EE
EVRSTRDPTE R BT < AIESC ([ < RIRSC L) ©

(EERTADTABRIEA2IERT  EFGLHEMN
TREZNAEESFH - YATRAR—EAEE - RS
BELREESTFERARNBTHAE - ENRNBLE
—HARARKENERAKEZAFRE  HEESME
ERMEAEERAKREEB T H 2 BE LB EAEZ T
T ARAEEERRRERARREIRERITRAR 2 AE
ANEREEE 2 BE - {MERAREBRE FORRY
HaREEz&ENS -

EEZAR REBABRTREKEERE ST RIEX
FA2VGERINE - BEBLABN  EFER/RERE
RBHAKEZET2ER YA LGE - EF
BAOERRKTFEEER  WMRERRZBEBMNE - EF
ERAEEERELESEBAREERIENK  B#ERS
TEBHEESLIFRARNRITRAR ZAEDHH -

ANNUAL REPORT | 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers for
the management and conduct of the Company's business. The day-
to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to
the management of the Company, who will implement the strategy
and direction as determined by the Board.

Composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, with three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Binggiang (chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Chen Bingyao

Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun

Independent non-executive Directors

Ir. Daniel Lai

Mr. Xu Kai

Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed "Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 17 to 25 of this annual report.

There is no alternate director being appointed to the Board.
Responsibilities of executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and overseeing the Group’s business development,
strategic planning and promoting the success of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors participate in the Board
meetings to bring in an independent judgment to bear on the
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conducts and scrutinize the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high standard
of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company
so as to protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the
Group.

Throughout FY2020, the Company had three independent non-
executive Directors, which met the requirements of the Listing Rules
that the number of independent non-executive Directors must
represent at least one-third of the Board and should not be less
than three, and that at least one of the independent non-executive
Directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the independent
non-executive Directors have been independent and met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during
FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Term of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered info a service contract
with the Company and the Company has issued appointment letters
to each of the independent non-executive Directors. The principal
particulars of these service contracts and letters of appointment
are (i) for a term of three years commencing from their respective
effective dates; and (ii) subject to termination in accordance with
their respective terms. The ferm of the service contfracts and the
letters of appointment may be renewed in accordance with the
Arficles and the applicable Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Remuneration

The Directors and the senior management receive remuneration
in the form of salaries, fees, discretionary bonuses and other
allowances and benefits in kind (where applicable).

The aggregate amount of remuneration (including salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses, other benefits and contributions
to pension schemes) paid or payable to the Directors for FY2020 was
approximately RMB4,596,000.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, experience, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the Directors for FY2020
are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. In addition, pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the
CG Code, the annual remuneration of the senior management of
the Company by band for FY2020 is set out below:

Nil-HK$1,000,000

Save as disclosed in this annual report, (i) no remuneration was paid
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join, or upon joining, the Group; (ii) no compensation was paid to,
or receivable by, the Directors or past Directors or the five highest
paid individuals during FY2020 for the loss of office as director of
any member of the Group or of any other office in connection with
the management of the affairs of any member of the Group; and
(iii) none of the Directors waived any emoluments during the same
period.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director or none of the
five highest paid individuals has been paid in cash or shares or
otherwise by any person either to induce him to become, or to
qualify him as a Director, or otherwise for service rendered by him in
connection with the promotion or formation of us.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed Director will be arranged a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction which includes provision of key guidelines,
documents and publications relevant to their roles, responsibilities
and ongoing obligations; a briefing on the Company’s structure,
businesses, risk management and other governance practices
and meeting with ofher fellow Directors so as to help the newly
appointed Directors familiarize with the management, business and
governance policies and practices of the Company, and ensure that
they have a proper understanding of the operations and businesses
of the Company.

The Company encourages its directors to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars organized by
professional institutions or professional firms and study materials on
relevant topics so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

During FY2020, the Directors were provided with reading materials
relevant to corporate governance, director’'s duties and
responsibilities, the Listing Rules and other relevant ordinances.

Meeting of Board and Board Committees and Directors’ Attendance
Records

Notice of regular Board meetings is served on all Directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board and Board committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board or Board committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management of the Company where necessary.
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Meeting of Board and Board Committees and Directors’ Attendance
Records (Continued)

The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. The
minutes of Board and Board committee meetings record in sufficient
detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after the meetings are
held. The number of Board meeting held and attendance of each of
the Directors is as follow:

Mr. Chen Binggiang BRimaR 4
Mr. Chen Bingyao RRBLE
Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun REMmELE
Ir. Daniel Lai BB TIZA
Mr. Xu Kai Tk

Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David BIRFEE

The chairman of the Board will at least annually hold meetings with
the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company'’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company'’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities fo the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee (together, the
“Committees”). In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Articles and
the relevant laws and regulations in the Cayman Islands, the Board
has established the Committees for effective and efficient corporate
governance. These Committees are established and operated in
accordance with the specific written terms of reference, which are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yeung
Chun Yue David (Chairman), Ir. Daniel Lai and Mr. Xu Kai. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among others:

(a) to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
other terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Audit Committee
should discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the
audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(c) where more than one audit firm is engaged, to discuss with
each of the audit firms the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations and ensure co-ordination between audit
firms before the audit commences;

(d) to develop and implement policy on engaging an external
auditor to supply non-audit services. For this purpose, “external
audifor” includes any entity that is under common conftrol,
ownership or management with the audit firm or any entity that
a reasonable and informed third party knowing all relevant
information would reasonably conclude to be part of the audit
firm nationally or internationally. The Audit Committee should
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations
on any matters where action or improvement is needed;
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Review of the Company’s financial information

(e) to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements

and annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly

reports (if any), and to review significant financial, reporting
judgments contained in them;
(f)  in reviewing these reports (the Company’s annual report and

accounts, interim report and quarterly report) before submission

to the Board, the Audit Committee should focus particularly on:

(i)
(ii)
(i)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

(vi)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
(xi)

any changes in accounting policies and practices;
major judgmental areas;

significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

the going concern assumpfion and any qualifications;
compliance with accounting standards;

compliance with the Listing Rules and legal requirements
in relation to financial reporting;

the fairness and reasonableness of any connected
tfransaction and the impact of such transaction on the
profitability of the Group and whether such connected
fransactions, if any, have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the agreement governing such
fransactions;

whether all relevant items have been adequately
disclosed in the Group's financial statements and whether
the disclosures give a fair view of the Group’s financial
conditions;

any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to
be, reflected in such reports and accounts;

the cashflow position of the Group; and

and to provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Review of the Company’s financial information (Continued)
(g) inregard to (f) above:

(i) members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management of the Group and the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with
the Company's auditors; and

(i) the Audit Committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in the reports and accounts, it should give due
consideratfion tfo any matters that have been raised
by the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting
and financial reporting function, compliance officer or
auditors;

(h)  to discuss problems and reservations with the auditors arising
from the interim and final audits, and any matters the auditors
may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where
necessary);

Oversight of the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures

(i) to review the Company’s financial confrols, internal control
and risk management systems;

(i) to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its
duty to have an effective internal control system. This discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

(k)  to consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

1) where an intfernal audit functfion exists, fo ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(m) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(n) to review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;
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Oversight of the Company'’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures (Continued)

(o) to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor's management letter;

(p) toreport to the Board on the matters set out above; and

(g) to consider and implement other matters, as defined or
assigned by the Board from time to time.

The Audit Committee held 7 meetings during FY2020 for the purposes
of, among other things, considering and approving the annual
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
interim financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The
details of attendance are set out below:

Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David BRFEE
Ir. Daniel Lai BT TRM
Mr. Xu Kai TR E

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Directors the
nominatfion of Moore Hong Kong for re-appointment as external
auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Company’s annual results for FY2020 have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Renumeration Committee consists of four members, namely
Ir. Daniel Lai (Chairman), Mr. Xu Kai, Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David
and Mr. Chen Binggiang. The primary dutfies of the Remuneration
Committee are, among others, to make recommendations to the
Board:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
fransparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve the Group's management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives;
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

(i)

(vii)

(viil)

either to determine, with delegated responsibility, or to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management,
this should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

tfo make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;

tfo consider salaries paid by comparable companies, fime
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group;

tfo review and approve compensatfion payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with confractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during FY2020 for

the purposes of, among others, considering the remuneration
package and benefits of the executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board for approval. The details of
aftendance are set out below:

Ir. Daniel Lai = TIZA
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Xu
Kai (Chairman), Ir. Daniel Lai, Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David and Mr.
Chen Bingyao. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are,
among others:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes fo the Board fo complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors; and

(iv) to make recommendations fo the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors succession planning for Directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during FY2020 for the
purposes of, among others, reviewing the composition of the Board,
considering any changes in the Directors and senior management
of the Company and the making recommendations to the Board for
approval. The details of attendance are set out below:

Mr. Xu Kai Tk

Ir. Daniel Lai BHE TR
Mr. Yeung Chun Yue David BIRFEAE
Mr. Chen Bingyao RIRRLE
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set
out in Appendix 10 fo the Listing Rules as the required standards for
securities fransactions by the Directors. Specific enquiries have been
made to all the Directors and all the Directors have confirmed that
they had complied with the required standards, where applicable,
set out in the Model Code during FY2020.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION

Moore Hong Kong is appointed as the external auditor of the
Company.
For FY2020, the fees paid to Moore Hong Kong for the audit of the

annual financial statements of the Group were RMB%35,000.

There was no non-audit service provided by Moore Hong Kong fo
the Company during FY2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge that they have the responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements in order to
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group, the
financial performance and cash flow during FY2020. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for FY2020, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
tfo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern.

The statement from the external auditors regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
intfernal control and risk management systems in order fo
safeguard the Group's assets and Shareholders’ interests and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure
that intfernal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company outsourced its intfernal audit function to
Messrs BT Corporate Governance Limited who reports to the Board
directly. The internal audit function primarily carries out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal confrol systems, and
reports their findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group's internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its
own conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority
and to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies
set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of
the department’s business and implementation of the policies and
strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

During FY2020, the Board had reviewed the effectiveness of the
infernal control and risk management systems of the Group to
ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and
standards. The review covered all material confrols, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the review also covered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporfing functions. The review was made
by discussions with the management of the Company and the
assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board believes
that the existing internal control system is adequate and effective, in
particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously
of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. All
the inside information identified by the Directors shall be published
and disclosed to the public in a timely manner through the
Company’s publications and communications, unless the information
falls within safe harbours as prescribed in the SFO.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company's annual general meetfing remains the principal forum
for dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are encouraged
to participate in the proceedings of and ask questions about the
resolutions being proposed and the operations of the Group. The
Arficles allow a Shareholder entitled to attend and annual general
meeting vote to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote
on behalf of the Shareholder and also provide that a proxy need not
be a shareholder.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stfipulates that the issuer should
arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case of the
annual general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and in the case of all other general meetings at least 10
clear business days before the meeting. The Company has been in
compliance with such code provision.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
Shareholder meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Arficles, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in wrifing fo the Board or the company secretary for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting tfo be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisifionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2016 Revision). However, Shareholders who wish
to propose resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including
a resolution at such meeting. The relevant requirements and
procedures are set out above. As regards proposing a person for
election as a Director, the procedures are available on the welbsite
of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Company and contact details

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests
and comments can be addressed to the company secretary of the
Company by email to stella@sanvo.com.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The form, frequency and amount of dividends declared each year
will take into consideration the Group's profit growth, cash position,
positive cash flow generated from operations, projected capital
requirements for business growth and other factors as the Board may
deem appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There had been no change to the Articles for FY2020, which is
available on the websites of the Company (www.sanvo.com) and
the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk), respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY CONTACT OF THE
COMPANY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun who is
also an executive Director and the primary contact of the Company.
Mr. Ng has been a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Ng Cheuk
Lun has undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year 2020. All the Directors have access to
the advice and services of the company secretary on corporate
governance and Board practice and mafters. Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun
has been contacting with the Board directly in respect of company
secretarial matters.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

SANVO Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the "Company” together
with its subsidiaries, collectively, “we”, "us”, “our” or the “"Group”)
is pleased to present our annual Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group's management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance (“ESG") issues.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal confrol systems are in
place. The management will regularly report the relevant state to
the Board.

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report illustrated the Group’s initiative and performance on the
environmental and social aspects for the period from 1 January 2020
to 31 December 2020 (the “"Reporting Period”).

REPORTING SCOPE

This Report covers all subsidiaries of the Group in the People’s
Republic of China (the "PRC") with core business that principally
engaged in researching, developing, manufacturing and sales of
hardware and building materials and automotive maintenance
industrial chemical products in the PRC. The Group will continue in
assessing the impacts of ifs business on the major ESG aspects and to
include in the Report.

REPORTING BASIS

This Report was prepared in accordance to the Environmental,
Social, and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”)
sef out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
The Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide.
Key performance indicators (“KPIs”) which are considered material
by the Group during the Reporting Period are disclosed. The Group
will continue to optimize and improve the disclosure of KPIs. This
Report was prepared and published in both English and Chinese. In
the event of contradiction or inconsistency, the English version shall
prevail. For more information on our corporate governance, please
refer to the "Corporate Governance Report” on pages 56 to 81 of
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on the Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email fo www.sanvo.
com.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

We identified the key stakeholders of our business operations.
We interact with our stakeholders regularly through various
communication channels. The following table illustrates the issues of
concern of our major stakeholders and the ways we communicate
with stakeholders:
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Government, — To comply with laws — On-site inspections and checks — Operated, managed and paid taxes
public and A=A BEERE according to laws and regulations,
communities — Proper tax payment — research and discussion through work strengthened safety management;

B ARATR ZEEH conferences, work reports preparation obtained/renewed licence timely,

HE = Ensure production and submission for approval accepted the government’s supervision,
safety, environmental BBTEEASHANTHR  BERRERIE inspection and evaluation, and actively
protection and social WELA LR undertook social responsibilities
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BieEf
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economic development
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Shareholders
and Investors

RREREE

Employees
&8

Return on investment
RE@R

Stable operation
BERT

Risk minimization

[ &AL
Information disclosure
and fransparency
ERBREERE
Protection of interests
and fair treatment of
shareholders
RERRERRATEHE
BRE

True, accurate and
timely reporting

BE  ERRERES

Safeguard the rights
and interests of
employees
RIE(E S EMMF =
Salary and welfare
HERER

Working environment
THERE

Career development
opportunities
SEURKE
Self-actualisation
BRER

Health and safety
ERERS
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Annual general meetings and other
shareholder meetings
BERRAEREMBEAE

Interim reports, annual reports and
announcements

RHRE  FRRAE

Company website

AR

Meeting with investors

HREEEE

Roadshows

=
=) //%i%\

Feedback box

BAM

Training, seminars, briefing sessions
Fil - Hae - Ehe

Team activities

BHED

RE - HBRERBE

FOESER)

Issued notices of general meetings

and proposed resolutions

according to regulations, disclosed
company's information by publishing
announcements/ circulars, interim report
and annual report in the year. Carried
out different forms of investor activities
with an aim to improve investors’
recognition. Disclosed corporate contact
details on website and in reports and
ensured all communication channels
available and effective
RROBORRAGRERRER - FAHE
AE/BR - PHRERFREBAAER -
REAAFANREEED  REREENR
oo ERURBERRBEARBMEFE - BR
ZBERREGR

Provided a healthy and safe working
environment; developed communication
channel with management; developed
a fair mechanism for promotion; cared
for employees by helping those in need
and organizing employee activities
RERERZE2NIERSE  BERERYE
BRE BUATHEAEN  HEHETE
SVABEEED  BLES
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Customers

zF

Suppliers/
Partners

HRIER/AIEBH

Assurance on quality
and quantity of product
BREMMERESE
Stable relationship
BEAE

Group reputation and
brand image
SERELmET L
Market demand
sk

Long-term partnership
REBBHAZ

Honest cooperation
HBAE

Fairess and openness
N AR

Information resources
sharing

BRERLE

Timely settlement
BEEEXH

Site visit
EHER
Exhibition
RE

Email and customer service hotline

EFBHREPREAE
Feedback forms
mEERE

Regular meeting
ik

Market research
misRE

Strategic co-operation
REAME

Regular meetings
EHez

Tendering process
BizAR

RE - HBRERBE

FOESHEER)

Organised marketing activities, site visit
and exhibition
HETEHELY BHEEREE

Invited tenders publicly to select best
suppliers and contractors, performed
confracts according fo agreements,
enhanced daily communication, and
established long-term cooperation with
quality suppliers and subcontractors
AABRERSEREREADE KRBT
BH - MERERR - AEEHRERRSOH
BRIURBAERE
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Peer/Industry

Experience sharing —

associations DELR
EEVESE S Cooperation
e
— Fair competition
AERF
Financial — Compliance with the —
Institution laws and regulations
SRS B ERRAD —
— Disclosure of
information —
BAKE
Bank — Timely repayment of —
R loans

REEREX —
= Honest cooperation
HEEE

— Stable operation

.
RERTE
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Industry conferences and meetings

SEI T

Consulfing

i

Information disclosure
BBE

Reports

HE

Regular meeting

THEE

Business and operation update
EBREEAREH

FOESER)

RE - HBRERBE

Stuck to fair play, cooperated with
peers, shared experiences and attended
seminars and meetings of the industry so
as to promote sustainable development
of the industry

ERATHRT  BAEAE HEER - 20
TERTEREE RETENAFEER

Complied with regulatory requirements
in a strict manner, disclosed and
reported true information in a timely and
accurate manner according fo law
BIRETEERT  ROARE £ ZEER
ERHREE

Paid interest according to instalment
schedule and cooperated with banks for
inspection and monitoring
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS

To demonstrate commitment to sustainable development and
compliance with laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection, the Group endeavors to minimise the environmental
impact of the business activities and maintain green operations and
green office practices.

Our Group's operations are subject to certain environmental
requirements pursuant to the laws in the PRC, including but not
limited to PRC Environmental Protection Law* ({ff # A B #£ M
RIERE L)), the PRC Law on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution* ((Fh ZE A R £ M E K52 55455 )), the Law on Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC({# #E A R #
M B K S5 0548 % )), the Law on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Noise Pollution of the PRC ({fF#HE AR KAMBEIRE R
SSEBAA)) . the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes ((rh & A &+ 1 5 & 82 5 4105
FIREMHAE)) and the Guangdong Province Work Programme on
the Comprehensive Treatment and Emission Reduction on Volatile
Organic Compounds (2018-2020)* (ERAEEEG# Y (VOCs) A
JBHETET 2 (2018-20204F)) . We continuously observe the laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection in the PRC and
have been in strict compliance with them. We have implemented
environmental protection measures in our operations including
having environmental protection procedures in place to treat and
dispose of all of our waste in accordance with national and local
environmental laws and regulations. Dust, waste water, noise and
different sorts of pollutants are generated during our production
processes. We have established environmental and pollution control
policies with various measures in place to process and dispose of our
industrial wastes to minimise the impact on the environment include,
amongst other things:
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS (CONTINUED)
Air pollution

There are increasingly stringent environmental and safety
requirements in the PRC fine industrial chemical industry especially
for emission of VOCs. Certain of our subsidiaries has been listed as
one of the VOCs emission enterprises under supervision and required
to compile a VOCs emission comprehensive control scheme (VOCs
PR AR E) (the “Control Scheme”) in 2018. Thus our Group
aims fo increase the number and proportion of our products which
are water-based/low-VOCs to adhere to the prevailing and more
stringent industry environmental standards in order to minimise any
adverse impact on the environment resulting from our business
activities and monitor technological trends in our industry in the PRC,
which is evident from (i) 118 out of 207 of our fine industrial chemical
products (represenfing approximately 57.0% of our products) are
currently water-based/low-VOCs, and (i) our Group holds various
patents (such as “zero VOC nano franquil emulsion paint” and
“high-hardness wear-resistant double-group waterbased wood paint
and its preparation method”) in relation to the manufacture of
environmentally friendly fine industrial chemical products which are
water-based and/or low-VOCs.

In order to minimise the emission of VOCs, the Group had
implemented measures as below:

— upgrading the oil paint to water paint;

— change of raw material such as toluene and acetone to
ethanol;

—  the propellant LPG is replaced by dimethyl ether (“DME") in
which DME is more soluble;

— adding cover for containers that are not fully sealed in order to
reduce the volatilisation of organic waste gas;

—  optimising the production plan so as to reduce various emission
and waste by cleaning devices due to change of raw materials
for production;

— renovating exhaust gas and dust collecting channels in
production workshops to reduce emission from the hazardous
substances effectively;

— upgrading the original waste gas treatment facilities in the
paint workshop and installing an activated carbon adsorption
devices to improve the waste gas freatment capacity;
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS (CONTINUED)
Air pollution (Continued)

— installing a new set of liquid medicine absorption spray fower
with UV photolysis device and activated carbon adsorption
equipment in the paint workshop to improve the efficiency of
waste gas collection and treatment ; and

— planting more trees in a systematic way tfo ensure an evergreen
environment.

Other than VOCs, our operation also generates airborne pollutants
in our production and transportation processes. Our vehicles are
regularly inspected to ensure exhaust emissions are within regulated
limits.

Waste control

Our hazardous waste produced mainly consists of wasted mineral
oils, paint residue and activated carbon used during the production
process. Non-hazardous waste mainly includes domestic waste. They
are separatfely stored and handled with the ledger for record. As
our production process involves the use and storage of hazardous
materials, it is always our top concern to comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations in the PRC and avoid the
occurrence of any environmental contamination event during our
production activities. As a result, we continuously observe the laws
and regulations in relation to environmental protection as amended
from time to time in the PRC. In practice, in order to properly control
the disposal of our production wastes, we have formulated detailed
environmental profection rules and guidance for our staff to follow
during production. We also engages qualified recycling companies
to perform waste disposal and treatment, especially for hazardous
waste, so as fo minimize the impact on nature. In addition, to ensure
that the quantities and rafes of our production discharge are in
compliance with the applicable environmental laws and regulations,
we engage qualified third-party pollutant supervision companies to
examine, monitor and provide advices on our pollutant discharge
conditions for at least once in each financial year.

Other pollution

With respect to waste water, we have filters installed in our sewage
pipelines and carry out regular cleaning of our sewers and pipelines
to ensure pollutants do not directly enter the sewer. We also
install soundproof walls to control the noise generated during any
renovatfion or maintenance works carried out at our production sites.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS (CONTINUED)
Other pollution (Continued)

Our Group strictly adheres to the standards, metric and targets
set or issued by the PRC Government environment-related
compliance (including those issued by the General Administration
of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC
and Standardization Administration of the PRC) in assessing and
managing our impact on the environment resulting from our business
activities, including without limitation our consumption or use of
hazardous or harmful substances in our fine industrial chemical
products. In addition, given the increasingly stringent environmental
and safety requirements in the PRC fine industrial chemical products
industry, our Group places emphasis on minimising adverse impact
on the environment, particularly through research and development
on eco-friendly products, in order to strengthen and maintain our
competitiveness such as by establishing research and development
centres, the objectives and functions of which include (i) research
and development on new products and designing new solutions
and/or formulae, and (i) gathering market infelligence and closely
monitoring the technological trends in our industry in the PRC and
also globally. We also strive to produce high quality products, which
includes limiting the use of harmful and non-eco-friendly substances
in the production process. For example, certain of our subsidiaries
has been accepted as a member of the Motor Vehicle Brake Fluids
Industry Quality Alliance* (BB ENREZ R EEE), which is an
association aimed at promoting the industrial adjustment through
enhancing the technical merit and quality of brake fluids products,
and the Guangdong Association of Quality Inspection (EREE £
%= )and has participated in relevant association activities, such
as staff trainings and seminars on quality inspection. In addition,
our Group has been keeping apprised close attention to the newly
published or amended environmental laws, regulations or rules
enacted by the environmental protection governmental authorities
of national or local level from time to time and is willing to assume
social responsibilities to assist in building up a more environmentally
friendly, pollutant-free and recyclable society by focusing on
improving clean production and has joined, among others, the
Guangdong Clean Production Association (ER&ZZEEWRE )by
certain subsidiary of our Group. Moreover, we have also participated
in academic research relating to clean production and a number
of our management and employees have published papers with
respect to environmental issues caused by the production of
relevant hazardous chemicals in various periodicals in the PRC. We
will continue to encourage our management and employees to
conduct or take part in research relating to environmental protection
issues, especially in areas connecting with manufacture of, among
others, aerosols, adhesives, painting and coating products.

* For identification purpose only
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RiE - tRERRE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED) A, REEM(E)
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS (CONTINUED) BE A1 By (&)
Other pollution (Continued) Ht5 5 (4%)

In light of the above measures, we believe the discharge of each ER Lt RMRREEBREPEENSERREITR
of the key pollutants generated during our production process V) 2 BE S FERISTER E REZ RARBIBR I A+ BUtb F M
shall remain within prescribed regulatory limits and thus our MERLSET@HWRIBERKEATHEE -

business operations do not have a material adverse impact on the

environment.

During the Reporting Period, there was no material breach of or non- WEHER  TESERERITFEEARBRELZR
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations related to RO ©
environmental protection.

Maijor air pollutants emission from our operation during the Reporting MEBEAR - BANEEEENETEERSEWEERER
Period as follows: PORNE

Air Pollutant Emission

ERERNHER
Air Pollutant Emission (kg)
ERERNHERE (D)
2020 2019
Type of Air Pollutants 53 bt 33 “Z-NE
Sulphur Dioxide =Y 35.39 72.87
Nitrogen Oxides A&ty 805.63 1,223.22
Particulate Matter BFHRT 38.35 61.33

During the Reporting Period, the GHG emission from the operation is AR - SEEAMERESREHREBERMT
set out below:

GHG Emission
BERBER
Equivalent CO, emission (tons)

SELBERSMNE(H)

2020 2019
Type of GHG emissions BEREHNER —g-EE T h&
Scope 1 Direct emissions HE 1 BEER 419.67 470.22
Scope 2 Indirect emissions HE 2 AR 4,837.77 4,670.48
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions #[E 3 AR R 16.48 24.14
Total st 5,273.92 5,164.84
Intensity (tons/ Revenue RMB'000) BE(H/ ARSTTHE) 0.0063 0.0063
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS (CONTINUED)

Other pollution (Continued)

Note:

The calculation of the GHG gas is based on the “A Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from The GHG Protocol.

Scope 1: Direct emission from vehicles and refrigerant that are owned by the

Group

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity

consumed by the Group

Scope 3: Other indirect emissions is optfional disclosure that includes emissions

from employee’s business travel primarily

BEEN
Non-hazardous waste EEZREY
Total st

Intensity (tons/ Revenue RMB’'000)

Hazardous waste

During the Reporting Period, 7.11 tons Non-Harzardous waste were
recycled.

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES

The Group places high priority on the efficient use of resources.
The major resources used by the Group are electricity and water.
For usage of water, the Group did not encounter any problems in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose. The Group strives to improve
the efficient use of natural resources, such as minimising waste/
emissions and implementing effective recycling program. Practical
measures are implemented as follows.

—  Switching off lights and turning off unnecessary energy-
consuming devices when staff leaves the office;

—  Adopting LED lighting in some production workshops and
offices;

— Utilising materials that facilitate clean production environment
to effectively reduce the consumption of detergents and
running water;

—  Bringing our own cups to avoid using paper cups;

— Improving product packaging forms tfo conserve the
consumption of carton materials;
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND RiE - tRERRE
GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED) A, REEM(E)

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED) BEA2: ERERE)

—  Collection of carton box and sold to recycling companies; —  WERHETEFRIKRAF

—  Setting the temperature of air-conditioning system in a range — BERRAAREREL25CE26C2M
between 25°C to 26°C;

—  Adopting “one vehicle one card” policy so as to monitor the — RAE—FIEE ELSWE@maREHERB
usage of fuel by each vehicle and to avoid wastage by private ao e EFLAFERERRE
usage;

— Regular maintenance of vehicles with good condition for — TFTHREMRARIFNEFHUIESEEBE
operational efficiency;

— Using online office system to minimise the use of paper. — [FHRBLERARS  [ZERLERER - REFA
Promoting double side printing in office; EEAEMEITH

—  Focus on quality management so as to reduce wastage and — IEREEE  RLRBRIRELRDISAR

scrap for less pollution resulted;

—  Enhancing the monitoring for the use of food in canteen to — NREEREMNRSRER BIRE X
reduce wastage; and

—  Establishing management system of idle resources in order to — BUHEBEBRERHE ROFMBEAEBER-
fully utilise the resources of the Group.

Consumption of energy, water and packaging materials by the REHEA - NREENER  KERBEMEDEESESIM
Group during the Reporting Period is set out below: T

Energy Consumption
BERH#E

Energy consumed (kWh)

RERHE(TRE)

2020 2019
Type of energy BRER it e 23 —E-NE
Unleaded petrol & H 654,283.97 771,754.67
Diesel B9 565,659.57 1,124,016.92
Purchased electricity SNEE N 5,781,964.58 6,944,545.00
LPG RILBHBR 106,538.19 75,268.50
Total @t 7,108,446.31 8,915,585.09
Energy intensity (kWh/ Revenue RMB’000) EREE(TRE/ARETTHE) 8.46 10.95
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED) A. REEEGE)

ASPECT A2: USE OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED) EEA2: ERFEMHE)

Water Consumption
FKE

Running water consumed BRKHEEES 98,071.79 118,326.00
Intensity (tons/ Revenue RMB’000) ZE(H/ ARETTlE) 0.12 0.15

Packaging materials

BEHH

Type of packaging materials BEMBER
Metal +B 11,150.34 13,618.99
Plastic il 5,006.05 5,391.84
Paper R 3,846.95 4,211.92
ASPECT A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURE RESOURCES EBHEA3:  BERAXARER
The Group raises staff's awareness on environmental issues through REEZBHENEIRAETIHREFENSH W5

education and training and enlist employees’ support in improving FETTHREARNERNEN  BAEPE  EEBEH LK
the Group's performance, promote environmental awareness HHIREREN SIS AABREREENEERRENTREE
amongst the customers, business partners and shareholders and 8 WEHEIFHME RESREE NI E/RE  ©2NIRIE
support community activities in relation to environmental protection FENERETE - BRBRAIHERY M ERER IS8
and sustainability and evaluate regularly and monitor past and RIENRMECR  AEERBRERIVERERRKAERN
present business activities impacting upon health, safety and o

environmental matters. With the integrafion of policies mentioned

in sections "Emissions” and “Use of Resource”, the Group strives to

minimise the impacts to the environment and natural resources.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS
ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT

The Group believes that a key to our success is our ability to
recruit, retain, motivate and develop talented and experienced
staff members. We endeavour to attract and retain appropriate
and suitable personnel to serve our Group. Our group assesses the
available human resources on a continuous basis and will determine
whether additional personnel are required to cope with the business
development of our Group. The Group's employment handbook
sets out our standards for compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with each of our
employees in accordance with the applicable labour laws of PRC.
The package includes basic wages, over-time work allowances,
bonuses, retirement benefits and other staff benefits such as various
PRC government sponsored employee benefit funds. We have
devised an appraisal system for our employees and we consider
the appraisal result in conducting our salary reviews and making
promotion decisions. All our staff members undergo a performance
appraisal once a year. The appraisal provides us with an opporfunity
to assess each individual staff’'s strengths and areas for improvement,
thereby enabling us to effectively train and develop each individual
staff.

We recruit new employees based on specific job requirements, our
resources and needs from time to time. We believe our success
depends heavily upon our employees’ provision of consistent, quality
and reliable services. In order to attract, retain and develop the
knowledge, skills and quality of our employees, we place strong
emphasis on the development and training of our employees.
Induction courses, fraining programs and safety courses are
conducted regularly. Apart from the above, we also incentivise
our employees to gain knowledge in the relevant field of studies.
We believe this will also increase the overall competitiveness of our
workforce and can maintain good relationship with our employee as
we believe that our employees are valuable assets to our Group.

During the Reporting Period, there were no material non-compliance
regarding employment brought against the Group or its employees.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

ASPECT B1: EMPLOYMENT (CONTINUED)

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employees by gender, age

group and employment category as at 31 December 2020 and 2019:

By gender
Male

Female

Total

By age group
30 or below
31-40

41-50

51 or above
Total

By employment category
Normal
Middle
Senior

Total

BAER

2

g3

A
RERAR
0BHMT
HREA0R
NFEES05
51R3M L
A
RERES
—f

B

S¥

A

Below is a detailed breakdown of our employee furnover rate
by gender and age group during the Reporting Period and the

corresponding period:

Turnover rate by gender
Male

Female

Turnover rate by age group
30 or below

31-40

41-50

51 or above
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GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places emphasis on occupational health and work safety
in our production plants. We are subject to PRC labour, safety and
work-related laws and regulations including the Law on Production
Safety of the PRC* (fh#E AR LFB LT 2 4 E % ). Thus, we have
implemented various health and safety measures, such as:

(i) compiling health and safety management manuals;

(i)  establishing standard procedures and guidelines for the
operation of machineries;

(iii)  establishing contingency plans and measures in case of
emergency and work accidents; and

(iv) providing other information, instructions, fraining and
supervision as necessary.

Our business involves the handling, storage and use of flammable
and explosive materials. Improper handling of these materials may
result in serious health effects or personal injury. Thus, we have
designated warehouses in place for the storage of raw materials or
goods that are classified as hazardous substances. These warehouses
are equipped with safety and fire control systems and equipment in
accordance with relevant PRC laws and regulations. We endeavour
to keep the storage levels of our inventory, including hazardous
substances, remained satisfactory and were within our storage
capacity.

Besides, we have established a production safety committee for
each of our current production sites to oversee the implementation
of the safety measures at our current production sites. We have
also prepared a number of production safety manuals for different
production processes, which are designed to standardise the
operating procedures in respect of work safety.

We maintain different types of insurance policies for all of our
properties, manufacturing facilities, plant and machinery, equipment
and inventories against damage caused by accidents. To minimise
our product liability risk, we maintain product liability insurance and
have stringent quality control measures in place in order to avoid
or reduce the incidence of product defects. We are also required
under relevant PRC laws and regulations to pay social insurance and
housing provident fund for our employees. We provide group life,
employer liability, work safety and mandatory social insurances for
our employees in the PRC.

We maintain an internal record of our work injuries. During the
Reporting Period, there was 1 injury case, and 1 staff deceased
due to illness. There were no material non-compliance cases noted
in relation to health and safety laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognises the importance of providing fraining for the
development of our employees. To ensure the performance quality
of our employees and their health and safety at work place and to
familiarise our employees with our quality control systems,we provide
on-the-job fraining fo our employees on work safety. We arrange
for our employees to undertake an annual occupational health
examination. If there is any employee having occupational diseases,
we will report to relevant authorities in the PRC and file work injury
insurance claim for employee concerned. We also encourage our
employees in aftending external industry-related frainings established
in our employment handbook.

ASPECT B4: LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with relevant labour laws and regulations
in the PRC. The Group prohibits the use of child labour and forced
labour that violate fundamental human rights and also poses threat
to sustainable social and economic development. Employment
contracts and other records, documenting all relevant details of the
employees (including age) are properly maintained for verification
by relevant statutory body upon request.

During the Reporting Period, we did not identify any issue related to
child labor or forced labor within the Group.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group works closely with its suppliers who are committed fo
high quality, environmental, health and safety standards. The
major types of materials used by us include packaging materials,
additives, pigments, fillers, color powder, metallic powder, resin,
rubber and solvents that were sourced from suppliers based in the
PRC. To ensure consistency in quality, purchase orders are normally
placed with suppliers which are on our internal list of approved
suppliers. We have multiple sources for most of our raw materials
to reduce possible interruptions to our business operations and
over-reliance on any individual supplier. This helps us fo maintain
stability of components and raw materials procurement. We usually
do not entered intfo any long-term agreements with our suppliers.
We have an extensive network of suppliers on our internal list of
approved suppliers which have a track record of delivering the
materials and components on schedule. In selecting a supplier, we
take into account a number of criteria, including: (i) its track record
and reputation, (ii) quality of materials or components/parts (as
applicable), and (iii) their qualifications (such as the obtfainment
of an Operating Licence for Dangerous Chemicals). In order fo
ensure our suppliers supply components and/or raw materials to our
Group at competitive prices, we have internal control measures in
place, including separate teams that handle the (i) procurement
of suppliers, and (ii) obtainment of quotations from suppliers,
respectively. Our suppliers provide their quotations to us by email
or facsimile. In addition, we strive to source our raw materials only
from suppliers which we believe are reputable as to ensure quality
standards and maintain our competitive edge. We also request that
our suppliers enter into quality assurance agreements with us.

We usually enter into supply agreements with our suppliers on an
annual basis, which typically do not have an automatic renewal
clause. Our supply agreements typically provide for the type of
raw materials, equipment and/or components supplied, quantity,
price, method of order and delivery, payment and credit terms,
quality assurance, penalty for delays and defects of raw materials,
and termination and renewal of the agreements. In general, our
purchases from raw material suppliers are made on the basis of
individual orders specifying the quantity of raw materials. In some
cases, we will pay a certain percenfage of the purchase price to
our suppliers prior to the delivery of raw materials. Payment terms
granted by our suppliers vary depending on a number of factors
including our relationship with the supplier and the size of an order.
Our major suppliers generally extend us a credit period ranging
between 30 to 90 days from delivery. During the Reporting Period,
we had over 90 suppliers on our list of approved suppliers.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Regarding subcontracting, we have subcontracted the manufacture
of amongst others, nail-less glue, special effects paint and anftifreeze
to a total of three to four manufacturers based in Guangdong
Province, the PRC in past years in order to maintain flexibility in our
resources and production and to better serve or suit our customers’
needs. We did not carry out any subcontracting arrangements in
recent years.

We generally placed orders based on our production schedules
and we did not enter info long-term confracts with any of
our subcontractors. We selected manufacturers to whom we
subcontract by considering a number of factors, including their
qualifications, experience, technical processes, production
capacity, services quality, machinery and equipment, proximity
tfo our production sites, tferms offered by them and their ability fo
assure fimely delivery, in order to ensure they have the operating
capabilities and resources to meet our internal standards and
technical specifications.

While we did not enter intfo long-term subcontracting agreements,
to ensure consistency of our products we had entered into annual
agreements with our subcontractors pursuant to which we may
place individual orders.

Thus, we believe there are no significant environmental and social
risks for our management decision on supply chain management
during the Reporting Period.

ASPECT Bé: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
Quality Control

We strive to provide high quality products to our customers and
place great emphasis on quality control, which is equally important
during our procurement and manufacture processes. Accordingly,
we have adopted a quality control system and we believe that as
a result of our stringent in-house quality confrol procedures, (i) we
did not receive any material complaints or claims in relation to our
products that would materially and adversely affect our financial
position in recent years, and (ii) the total value of products returned
by our customers due to product defects can said to be immaterial
of our fotal revenue.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B4: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

In recognition of our quality management system, we are certified
as being in compliance with the requirements of ISO 9001: 2015. Our
quality conftrol system is divided into the following main stages:

Raw materials procurement: All raw materials used in our production

processes are subject to inspection upon receipt at our current
production sites, before being warehoused. We conduct sample
inspections and tests on each batch of our raw materials when they
are delivered to our manufacturing facilities, to ensure that they are
in accordance with our standards. We document all quality conftrol
checks on all raw materials and conduct regular reviews on our
suppliers to assess their own quality controls. We also request that our
suppliers enter into quality assurance agreements with us and raw
materials that fail to meet our standards are returned to our suppliers
for corrective measures or for replacement at the supplier’'s own
cost.

Production process monitoring: Our quality confrol personnel monitor
our production processes to ensure consistency in the quality of our

products. Work-in-progress products are checked by the designated
quality control personnel before being passed on to the next stages
of production. The quality control personnel at the next stage of
production re-examines the work in-progress products received,
tfo ensure there are no defects before the products are further
processed.

Finished products quality control: At the end of the production
process, we inspect our products on a sampling basis to verify that

they meet our quality standards and specifications before delivery to
our customers. In addition, we ensure that our finished products are
properly stored in our warehouses prior to delivery to our customers.
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B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
ASPECT B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

Customer and distributor feedback: We have adopted a policy for

handling product complaints received from our customers and/or
distributors. If our customers have feedback or complaints regarding
the quality of our products or services, they may contact our
customer service personnel on our hotline, who will record details of
such feedback or complaints, and the relevant departments, such
as production, quality conftrol, operations and procurement, will
be notified of such complaints and relevant corrective or remedial
measures will be implemented when necessary. To verify the veracity
of any complaints over the quality of our products, we will assess a
sample of the product taken prior to the delivery against the product
specifications fo evaluate the product’s quality. If it is determined
that the complaint is due to manufacturing fault, defective products
are generally returned to us or replaced by non-defective products
at our own costs to our customers and/or distributors. In the event
that the product quality problem is due to defective materials,
we will request that the relevant supplier(s) bear(s) the costs of
replacement and/or rectification.

Ongoing quality improvement: Depending on the extent of any
products quality issues which we may defect, we may engage

independent third party experts to perform product quality
inspections. We also expose our products to various environment
conditions to ensure that each type of product maintains an
optimum level of quality for the duration of its expected useful life.

During the Reporting Period, there are no disputes between our
Group and our customers in respect of the quality of products
produced by us and there were no cases of non-compliance against
laws and regulations related fo products responsibilities.

ASPECT B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

To ensure the workplace operates in a fair and transparent manner,
the Group has formulated whistleblowing policy in employment
handbook to avoid suspected corruption. If there is any suspected
case related to corruption, employees are encouraged to report it
to human resources department. All these practical actions enhance
the sense of belonging and fair play among our various stakeholders.

The Group has been in strict compliance with law and regulation
related to anti-corruption. During the Reporting Period, there was
no any legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or its employees.
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RE - HBRERBE

B. SOCIAL ASPECTS (CONTINUED) B. #HEEME(E)
MBS : #EIRE

FEERAEMEEERNAR B THRMEEMEL
BT - AREBHEFNERIRMBE L REH
EHERELEBZENTEESH -

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate.
The Group strives to develop long-term relationship with our
stakeholders and seek to make contributions to programmes that
have a positive impact on community development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated RMB1,083,000 to
local community and charitable organisafion.

BEHEA > NEBERNEE R MESBRBEBBARE
1,083,000 7T °

REFERENCES TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

A. Environmental
A BE

Aspect Al: Emissions

R - @ RERREESIWRER

BEA: HB4
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions 61-65

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer, relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—REE BEERLREREBEN  RAKRIHAHET AEREEEENNELSH 73

(a) BER: R

(b) BTHEITABENTZHHEBEZERAOINER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emissions 65
BREMEEAL B R KRR B - BB
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in tofal and, where appropriafe, intensity. Emissions 65
BRERERAL2 RERBOEHRER(WER)FE - i3]
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Emissions 66
HREREEALS FELBERENEER(NER)HE - 23]
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. Emissions 66
BRENESA14 FEARZENEER(NER)EE - Huw
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. Emissions
BREYEEALS TR RSB REERFAERR BB 61-65
KPI A1.8 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emissions

reduction initiafives and results achieved.
BRENIEEALS HIRBEEREEENNGE  REEEENEERMERE B 63
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REFERENCES TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (CONTINUED)

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI A2.1

BRERERA2]

KPI A2.2
BRENERA22

KPI A2.3
BRERERA23

KPI A2.4

BRENERA24

KPI A2.5

BRERERALS

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials. Note: Resources may be used in production , in storage, fransportation, in
buildings, electronic equipment, etc.

BHERBR(BEER  KREMERME)BHE -

Wik BRATAREE 7 B8 BT BETRES-

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.
RENEDNERER REEEFEEES -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HERE A NG B RAERR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

HCRIER KGR LA AR E - AR a8 RAEMR -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with reference
to per unit produced.
HEmAABEMHNRER(NER)BEEEUES -
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Use of Resources

BRER

Use of Resources

BEREA

Use of Resources

BERER

Use of Resources
BRERA

Use of Resources

BRER

Use of Resources

BERER
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REFERENCES TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (CONTINUED) BIE -#HE2RERBERSIMNIRM(E)

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
EBEHA3: BERARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

—REE REBTAHRERARERENERZBHHE -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BRERERA3 WARBRDERERARERNEATYEULERAEREBY ENTY

B. Social

B.iE

Employment and Labour Practices

EREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : &R

General Disclosure Information on:
(a)  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare.

—-RKE ERHMREE BMEREA  TERE - BE TERE Sl REGUREMHERER
] :
(a) BE: R
(b) BFHETAFTERTENRWEERRINER -

Emissions and Use of

Resources

B R ERER 61-68

Emissions, Use of

Resources and The

Environment and

Natural Resources
By - BRERNR 68
BRERRAER

Employment

69-70
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REFERENCES TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (CONTINUED) RE -HERE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

EEB2: REEZ2

General Disclosure Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer,

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ERRUZ2TERERRERERLRENREMN -

() HBE: &

(b) BFHETAREAFENRWERNROINER -

—REE

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EE B3 : #EREA

General Disclosure
Description of training activities.

—REE BRRFEERTIIEBREDMHRRENBE - HREIED

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : HTER

General Disclosure Information on:

(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRMILET KBRS TH

(a) Bk

(b) BTHETABEAYENEBEERRGINHER -

—REE

Operating Practices

EEBA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : fEEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain

-REE BHERNRE R ERRKE

80 | ANNUAL REPORT

RIE-HERE

Policies on improving employees' knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
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REFERENCES TO THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE (CONTINUED)

Aspect Bé: Product Responsibility

EBEBs: EREE
General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:
(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer,
relating to health and safety, advertising, labeling and privacy matters relating fo
products and services provided and methods of redress.
ERFRUERNRBNRRERZS  BE  RERLBSEARBRA AN :
(a) BE: R
(b) BFHETAREATENRWEERROINER -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EEB7 : RAS
General Disclosure

—REE

Community
HE

Information on:
(a)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact

on the issuer,
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAMILEE 9% BEREREN
(a) BE: R
(o) EFHETAREAZENEBERRAGINER -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

BEBS : HERE

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take info consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRHR2ER T REEMEHERTENEREZHEDEZBHRNENRE -

RE - HBRERBE

R - B RERREESIWRL(E)

Product Responsibility

EmEf 74-76

Anti-Corruption

REA 76
Community

Investment
HERE 77
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

K| MOORE

Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders of
SANVO Fine Chemicals Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SANVO
Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(tfogether, the “"Group”) set out on pages 90 to 168, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audiit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Fthics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to Notes 6 and 7 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policy Note 4.8.

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises sales of hardware and
building materials and automotive maintenance industrial chemical
products.

AEENPESTEORBEEREREEMBARTERETREEER

The Group enters intfo framework agreements with its distributors
and customers every year. According to the terms of the framework
agreements, revenue is recognised when the goods are delivered to
the distributors and customers, which is the point when the control
of the goods is considered to have tfransferred fo its distributors and
customers.

AEESFREASHEBREPIERGE - RBERBENGR - EEMR
NEEHErkE,PK  EMNEHRRACEBRAKEHBLER » AR KBER
Yz e

We have identified the recognifion of revenue from sale of goods
under the framework arrangements as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key performance indicators of the Group and
because there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

MR HE WS D AR E A %iﬁmii?aﬁz— MEFEERERTZEDE
EERImEREMBEA M ARIRHOES R - B HMASRBERZ
HE®m %H&ﬁﬁ&mﬁ%%ﬁﬁk%ﬁ%lﬁ °

BYZHE®RE (E)

HRESER

MR B FHERBERMNEEHE -

RBYARA M

BRENBAZAEENEH - GLEEHEERMETE

BRAPBHRRMHARRKETREN - HMATSHE

LETEREEBENER -

Uy 8 FE R
ERHGANBRRIE6 R 7 U REHHRM T8 -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RANESTNAREEAREENSE

Our audit procedures to address the recognifion of

revenue from framework arrangements included the

following:

BPFHEER R G 2 ERITNET T2

inspected framework agreements signed
in the current year, on a sample basis, and
considered whether the framework agreements
contained terms allowing the distributors and
customers to make any sales returns;

AR EFNREOERGE 02 OERGELE
B8 FHEHH RE ST HERE R

for sales transactions during the reporting
period, compared, on a sample basis, details
in the sales invoices to the relevant goods
delivery notes, which were signed by the
distributors and custfomers, to assess if the
related revenue had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period on the basis of
the terms of sales as set outf in the framework
agreements;

RBMEHANHEERSME - FHEBRRROFAE
BHEEHEREPFEZENHEMENREEET ML
I L/(.JHMHF@HSU\ BERBER BT R EAHE
EIRFEEE NP B ARER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

The Key Audit Matter
HRENEE
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
KN ETT A EERERETSE

inspected all significant sales returns, if any,
during the reporting period and after the
end of the reporting period to assess whether
sales returns had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period;

5 9 5 B PO 9B 85 2RO T A R SR
B) - AR R TS & RO B M R W 17
TRiHE -

obtained external confirmations of the
outstanding tfrade receivable balances as at
the reporting date directly from distributors
and customers, on a sample basis. Where
the distributors and customers did not refurn
the requested confirmations, inspected the
sales invoices and related goods delivery
notes signed by the distributors and customers
indicating fthe distributors’ and customers’
acknowledgement of delivery of the goods
sold for the year ended 31 December 2020;
and

R AER  REHEBLEPERRBRNEEAH
i AR YR ER ) B 5 MR SR BB RO SRR E RE BK o AL SH P
REPARLERREZMAFR  AinEhEHEER
EPEENHEEZIRABERMNRSE  ZFL
BRPAKHEBREFPERRBBE_Z _TF+ A
=t HALFENDERREERN &

inspected significant manual adjustments, if
any, to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management the reasons for
such adjustments and comparing the details
of the adjustments to relevant underlying
documentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Refer to Notes 17 and 31(b) to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policy Note 4.3(d).

The Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had frade receivables (net
of expected credit loss) and otfther receivables amounting to
approximately RMB69,872,000 and RMBé63,564,000, respectively. The
Group had recognised an expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables of approximately RMB276,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020.

RIBZZF+-A=+—H FAEENEHFHMEKFEHBERAGE
E1B) A RIA A AR 69,872,000 7T kAR 63, 564 000 - HZE-_ZT_ZF
TZA=ZT—HLFE ARECHIAEKE ZFENBREEER(ERE
EEEDHR/ARK 276,000 7T °

The ECL assessment on frade and other receivables is considered
to be a matter of most significance as it requires the application
of significant judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management. The management of the Company believed that the
methodologies and inputs used in estimating ECL are appropriate
and best reflects the Group's exposure to credit risk. These models
and assumptions relate to the future macroeconomic conditions and
debtors’ creditworthiness. The ECL assessment requires significant
management’s judgements. Accordingly, we have identified
management’s ECL assessment as a key audit matter.

MRS S R EMERFIRN R EE BB G EREREFERERHE L E A
E%ﬁﬂ?”“*llﬂzﬁiﬁﬁizﬁ‘J$lﬁ ARFEBRERR ﬁluﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%%
BRTERBAERES  TARERRASENEERR - 2FEARBR
SRR B R B AR B AR M (B ﬁ%/\ﬂ’ﬂ BAR - E‘EHHETESEEHEIEEA@VE
HEAHE - Bt - ZHMBEEENEREEBRTEEERERBAFE -

BYZHE®RE (E)

BEESTEEH(E)

B 5 K E b RUWRRE 2 B R

BELMEAMBEHRERME17 X231 (b) A &5 BER M 5
4.3(d) °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EANBFSTNNEEBRENSEE

Our key procedures to address the impairment
assessment of trade and other receivables included
the following:

BPIRIEE S AR FR 2 REF A OERET 21

. discussed with the management of the
Company the reasonableness and relevance
of the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
adopted in performing the ECL assessment;

. HARNREREIwmETRAEEB RN GMRAN
TE - BABM BRI AN LRI

. obtained an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables from the management of the
Group and tfested the accuracy of ageing of
tfrade receivables at year end to the underlying
invoices on a sample basis;

. RAEEEREERE S REIANRE DN - Wi
BOAH R AR B SIRARR B R IREC RO SRR

. challenged the management’s assessment
of the recoverability of long outstanding and
overdue trade and ofher receivables, if any;

. IREEBYROAREERANE S R HEMERIA
E’J‘Mﬁl@l%ﬂé}

checked, on a sample basis, inputs used by the
management in the ECL assessment against
the source data (e.g. observable external

data); and

. MEREEREEHBEEERIETREANBAE
FHE 7 LR 58 BUUR (7] 40 A BR 22 69 70 BB BUIR ) 45 41 8
K

o assessed the adequacy of the ECL recorded

by reviewing subsequent settlements after the
year end and related correspondence, if any,
with customers about expected settlement
dates.

. BRAREFRZEANKELEARETPERRAE
HRMBERER(E)  FEEREEERCEN
FRIME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a frue and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and fo issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal conftrol relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ of the
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entfities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken fto eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Cerfified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: P05035

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Impairment losses on frade receivables
Listing expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company

Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax

Item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on translation

[tem that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on franslation for overseas

subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to owners

of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Company

Basic and diluted (RMB cents)
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Notes RMB’000
Bt zE AREFT

7 839,989
(571,046)

268,943
7 5,390
(103,725)

(92,886)

31(o) (276)

8 (3.785)

9 73,661

1 (7.841)

65,820

Ht2E(BR) W - NBRHER
AT esMnBERzE2AE

MEEECERER

(4,458)

HEResMmRERE 2R
BIMBARBREEL  ERZH

FREMEAEKE

2,813

(1,645)

FARAREABEFRNZEARELE

ARRBEREAELEEBRER
EAREEARED)

64,175

RMB'000
ANEETT

814,016
(589,484)

224,532
2,944
(102,135)
(80,843)
(642)
(12,753)
(4,379)
26,724
(2,789)

23,935

(31¢)

(316)

23,619

7.1



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2020

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables, other receivables and prepayments
Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and bills payables, accruals,
contract liabilities and other payables

Lease liabilifies

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Tax payables

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

B IR 2R

R-FE-FF+=-A=+—H

BERAR

FRBEE

nE - BELRRE

EREEE

WEmE - BERREZENHE
BEREHBEE

RBEE

FR
BHRFBREKFR - AR RFUE R BN
BEERRTEH

BehReEEY

RBAME

BHRRBENTR B ER  BOARER
H it R

REAE

SHRBITHR

HffEH

e R

RBEEFE

EEAERRBER

B

Notes
Bt zE

14
15
17
25

18
17
19
19

20
21
22
23

RMB’000
ARETT

200,323
101,275
18,803
138

320,539

63,007
166,327
38,067
77,168

344,569

242,419
2,955
79,277
14,001
8,348

347,000

(2.431)

318,108

RMB'000
AEE T

117,145
94,278
10,695

96

222,214

57,007
91,364
23,000
16,468

187,839

186,822
1,635
71,047

2,604

262,108

(74,269)

147,945
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF e BRI R(E)
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2020 R-FE-FF+=-A=+—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
MisE AREFT AEE T

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 21 7,596 3,938
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER 22 54,878 53,763
Other borrowings HipfEmR 23 23,750 =
Deferred income EREWA 24 1,685 1,723
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHBEE 25 3,490 3,945
91,399 63,369
Net assets EERE 226,709 84,576
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRHE
Share capital A 26 3,792 =%
Reserves =4 27 222,917 84,576
Total equity iR 226,709 84,576
*  Less than RMB1,000 * L AR 1,000

The consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved RIE-—F=A-+=HEARAESSIELREET
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company BRIV EHRERBUTATREESE
on 23 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chen Bingqiang Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun
BRIA 3R S 4 REfMEE
Director Director
BE BE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 4 4RSS EXR
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
(Nofe 26)  (Nofe27)  [Note27)  [Note27]  (Note?27)
(MizE26) (WizE27) (WizE27) (WizE27) (MizE27)

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-NE-A—-Bz&H —* 12,560 — 188 10,966 4,059 27,773
Profit for the year FREH — — — — — 23,935 23,935
Other comprehensive loss: A2 EER :
Exchange differences arising on ~ BEELZEREE

franslation — — — (31¢) — — (31¢)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FR2E(BR)/ KalE

income for the year — — — (316) — 23,935 23,619
Capital contribution from the REERBR 2 FE (Hz27)

ultimate controlling shareholder

(Note 27) - - 33,184 - - - 33,184
Appropriation to safety reserve ERER2REE27)

(Note 27) - - - - 5,942 (5.942) -
Utilisation of safety reserve BAR2EEE7)

(Note 27) - _ - _ (2,300) 2,300 _
Appropriation to statutory surplus ~ E&Z % BGEHE(HF27)

reserve (Note 27) — — — — 1,155 (1,159) =
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+-_R=t-RBz&H# —* 12,560 33,184 (128) 15,763 23,197 84,576
Balance at 1 January 2020 W-E-EE-F-A7EH — 12,560 33,184 (128) 15,763 23,197 84,576
Profit for the year FREH - - - - - 65,820 65,820
Other comprehensive loss: Eth2EER -
Exchange differences arisingon ~ HEEAZERESR

franslation - - - (1,645) - - (1,645)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FR2E(BR)/ hanE

income for the year - - - (1,645) - 65,820 64,175
Capitalisation of shares (Note ERERH (MzE26(b))

26(p)) 2,994 (2.994) - - - = =
Issue of shares pursuant 1o the B EmETRG

Listing (net of listing related (0% FHRmERAZ)

expenses) (Note 26) (P3E26) 798 86,517 - - - - 87,315
Appropriation to safety reserve BREZ2RE(NE27)

(Note 27) - - - - 10,826 (10,826) -
Utilisation of safety reserve HAR2EEM7)

(Nofe 27) - - - - (2,495) 2,495 -
Appropriation to statutory surplus ~ ERE T BirGE(HE27)

reserve (Note 27) - - - - 5,570 (5.570) -
2019 final dividends (Note 12) ZE-NEREBE(HH12) - (9.357) - - - - (9.357)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZZZEF-R=t—-BzEH# 3,792 86,726 33,184 (1,773) 29,664 75116 226,709

* Less than RMB1,000 * L AR 1,0007T
# These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of # ZEREREEBRENGESMBRARINEZGEEHEBHOARE
approximately RMB222,917,000 (2019: RMB84,576,000) in the 222,917,000 0(ZZ— N4 : AR#84,576,0007T) °

consolidated statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of deferred income

Bank interest income

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses on trade receivables
Written-off of property, plant and equipment
Interest expense

Operating profit before working capital changes
(Increase)/decrease in invenfories
Increase in frade and bills receivables, other receivables and
prepayments
Increase in trade and bills payables, accruals,
contract liabilities and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Bank interest received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
(Note)

Payments for acquisition of right-of-use assets

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
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KENE  BERREBNTE

REFBMAREFR

RMB’000
AR¥FT

73,661

(38)
(1,244)
9,793
4,270

276
2,648
3,785

93,151
(6,000)

(23,239)

49,654

113,566
(2.594)

110,972

1,244

(87,804)

(4,220)
(15,067)
(10,991)

(116,838)

RMB'000
ANEE T

26,724

(39)
(282)
8,909
4,262
(183)
642

4,379

44,412
13,407

(39,105)

35,905

54,619
(6,672)

47,947

282
208

(24,254)

(11,710)
(9,592)

(45,066



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #ZREREREXR(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —FE-_FFf+ - A=+—HIFFE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
it 5E AR¥TT AR¥F
Cash flows from financing activities BETBHRERE
Issue of shares pursuant to the Listing (net of listing related RE EMETRG (MR EHRBERS)
expenses) 87,315 —
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank borrowings SRRITERFGHE 159,991 58,743
Repayment of inferest-bearing bank borrowings BEFBRITER (150,648) (28,851)
Proceeds from other borrowings HERMERE 38,331 —
Repayment of other borrowings BEEEMER (580) =
Repayment to a director M—BEZEN — (25,746)
Advance from a director —REEZBH 5,943 —
Fund transfer in relation to the MOU (as defined and BaE TS mERE e GRmmM 7 (i) rEs
detailed in Note 17(ji)) Ritit) (52,000) -
Capital element of lease rentals paid EfszAe S (2,069) (1,679)
Interest element of lease rentals paid EfffgzFEHS (393) (394)
Interest paid on bank borrowings BARITIERAS 8 (8,227) (6,988)
Interest paid on other borrowings B B At SR S (97) —
Dividends paid BERARE (9.357) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities RETBRE/(FR)BLTE 68,211 (4,915)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ReRBSZENEN/ (BD)FE 62,345 (2,034)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FORERALEEY 16,468 18,818
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgHoye (1,645) (31¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERRERAELEEY 19 77,168 16,468
Note: Mzt -
Non-cash transaction: FBEEXF :

During the year, additions of property, plant and equipment of RERXN  AEBEDE  WMELRZXEH AR®2,883,0007T
approximately RMB2,883,000 (2019: RMB2,533,000) were prepaid in —E—-NF : AR 2,533,00070) B IBEFEEEN
prior years and the amounts were transferred from prepayments for BREAFEEREQWEDYE  BERREZTENFIE -
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

SANVO Fine Chemicals Group Limited (the "Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “"Group”) was incorporated as an exempted
company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
under the Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 12
April 2018. The registered office of the Company is located at PO Box
1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s headquarters and principal place of business
in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC") is located at Dacen
Industrial Park, Huangpu District, Zhongshan City, Guangdong, the
PRC and the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at 5/F., 349 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 16 January 2020 (the “Listing Date”) (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are researching, developing, manufacturing
and sales of hardware and building materials and automotive
maintenance industrial chemical products in the PRC.

At 31 December 2020, the directors of the Company consider the
immediate parent and ultimate confrolling party to be Sanvo Fine
Chemicals Limited, a company incorporate in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI"). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Chen Binggiang (Mr.
Ernest Chen), who is also the Chairman and Executive Director of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements set out in this report has
been prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) and related
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”). The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the "Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

The companies comprising the Group underwent a reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the Group's structure in
preparation for the Listing. Details about steps taken in the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company dated
27 December 2019.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statements of changes in equity and the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 include the results, changes in equity and cash flows
of companies within the Group as if the current group structure
had been in existence throughout the reporting periods, or since
their date of establishment, incorporation or acquisition, where
applicable. The consolidated statements of financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 have been prepared to
present the assets and liabilities of the companies now comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in existence
at those dates taking info account the respective date of
establishment, incorporation or acquisition, where applicable.

All significant infra-group fransactions, balances and unrealised gains
on fransactions have been eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transactions provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Non-conftrolling interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION
(CONTINUED)

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
have been used in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are set out in Note 5 “Significant accounting
judgements and esfimates”.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSS

(a) Adoption of new and revised IFRSs — effective 1 January 2020

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs which
became effective during the year ended 31 December 2020. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
applied all these new and revised IFRSs which are effective for the
Group’s accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

IAS1 and IAS 8 Amendments Definition of Material

IFRS 3 Amendments

Definition of a Business

IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
Amendments

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 1

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Revised Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting

The application of these new and revised to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current or prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. The
Group has not applied any new or revised standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 44 B FERMEBRMIEE(E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised IFRS not yet adopted
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At the date of this report, certain new and revised IFRSs have been ARG HH - BT REETBIBR T HiRE ERIKE
issued but are not yet effective, and have not been applied early by BAHEBEAED  MAEBWEIEFERZSEL -

the Group.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Amendments

BRI R 10 5% R BB & 5 4 B8 28 5 (B AT )

IFRS 16 Amendments
BUPR B R 22 A 16 5% (3T AR)

IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 Amendments

BIRREI S ERIE 9 5% - BIR @ ERF 395 -
BB BREEANE7SH  BRHBEREENE4RR
BRI BREERE 165 (BFTAR)

IAS 16 Amendments

RE R 165 (BATA)

IAS 37 Amendments
B e85 37 5 (BFTA)

IFRS 3 Amendments
ARABRS RS IR (BITA)

IFRSs Amendments 2018-2020
—\GEE_Z_ZFERMBRELZEITA

IAS 1 Amendments

SERFERETAR)

IFRS 17
BIRR I B R S 2RISR 17 5

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and To be determined*

its Associate or Joint Venture

REEREHENAAAECE L ANEEHEREA HEE*
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
COVID-19 12 A% “Z-TERA-H
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 1 January 2021
MEREYE — E-RE —T-—%#-f-A
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before 1 January 2022
Intended Use

n%  BERRE — RERRANMGERE —Z--f—-f-H
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022
BN — BITAHZHAR —Z--%-f-H
Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BAaER R —Z--%#—f-H
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 1 January 2022
B PR B R o R Bl R it “Z--%#-8-H
Clossificoﬂon of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023

BEAEARBIERD —T-_=%#—f—H
Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
RiREAK —Z-=%-H-H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) New and revised IFRS not yet adopted (Continued)

* On 17 December 2015, the IASB issued “Effective Date of
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28". This update defers the
effective date of the amendments in “Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventfure”
that the IASB issued in September 2014. Early application of
these amendments continues to be permitted.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related
impact of adopting the above new and revised IFRSs. So far, it has
concluded that the above new and revised IFRSs will be adopted
at the respective effective dates and the adoptfion of them is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless ofherwise stafted.

4.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries comprising the
Group for the year.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the investee; exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from the investee; and the ability fo
use its power to affect those variable returns. Conftrol is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of conftrol.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
tfransactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised losses on
infra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group's perspective.
Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are aftributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interest, even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a
deficit balance.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

4.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method, based on the
estimated economic useful life of the individual asset, using the
following rates:

Buildings 2% to 5% per annum, or over the term of
leases if shorter
9% to 25% per annum

10% to 33% per annum

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles
Leasehold improvements

18% to 25% per annum
10% to 33% per annum, or over the term

of the leases if shorter

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress until
such fime as the relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use. Construction in progress are transferred to the relevant
categories of property, plant and equipment upon the completion
of their respective constfruction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

4.3 Financial instruments
Financial assets
(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets at amortised cost only if both
of the following criteria are met:

— The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows; and

— The contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business
model in which the investment is held.

If collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets. The Group’'s financial assets comprise of trade and
bills receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. The Company’s financial assets comprise of
amounts due from subsidiaries and cash and cash equivalents.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assetfs are recognised
on the trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, fransaction costs that are directly aftributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The Group classified its debt instruments
at financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assetfs is included in other income using the effective inferest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other income and gains.
Impairment losses are recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in administrative expenses.

(d) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and trade,
bills and other receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since inifial
recognifion.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the confract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof for fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other receivables
where the effect of discounting is material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group fakes info account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort. This includes information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from
all possible default events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

For trade receivables, the Group has measured the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For bills and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged bank deposits, the Group recognises a loss allowance
equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial asset assessed at the
end of reporting period with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held). The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In partficular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or inferest on their
contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the tfechnological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on
either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes
in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when the instrument
is more than 90 days past due or the Group ceases business with
those debtors unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the
following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the fechnological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debftor;
or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written-off (either
parfially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assetfs or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written-off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period
in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
accruals and other payables, amount due to a director, lease
liabilities, other borrowings and interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
Company’s financial liabilities include accruals and amounts due to
a director and a subsidiary. Financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transactions costs incurred and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expired.

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indicatfion of impairment exists (other than inventories),
the recoverable amount of the assef is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual assetf, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used tfo determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of the impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. The reversal of
the impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in the year in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.5 Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the confract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of fime in exchange for consideration. Conftrol is
conveyed where the customer has both the right fo direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) Asalessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group, as a lessee
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets which are primarily
laptops and office furniture. The lease payments associated with
those leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease
term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.5 Leased assets (continued)
(i) As alessee (continued)

All the commencement date of a lease, the lease payments
included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the
following payments during the lease term:

— fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable;

— variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

— payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assetfs also includes an
estimate of costs tfo dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (Note 4.4) and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rafe, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is a
change arising from the reassessment of whether the Group
will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asseft, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced tfo zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.5 Leased assets (continued)
(i) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it defermines at lease inception
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assetfs to the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a confract contains lease and non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relafive stand-alone selling price basis. The rental
income from operating leases is recognised in accordance with
Note 4.8.

4.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using weighted average cost basis and includes
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories
is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.8 Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of hardware and building materials and
automotive maintenance industrial chemical products

Timing of recognition: The Group manufactures and sells hardware
and building materials and automotive maintenance industrial
chemical products. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred to customers, being when the products
are delivered to the customers, the customer has full discrefion over
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Delivery occurs when the products have been transported
to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. The
Group offers the right to return defective products within one month.
A contract liability is recorded as advances from customers for the
cash received from the customers before the delivery of goods.

Sales discounts are offered to the customers when the customers
meet the predetermined annual sales target. Accumulated
experience is used fo estimate and provide for the sales discounts,
using the expected value method. The sales discounts are
recognised and net off against the sales amount when sales are
recognised. The customers can utilise these sales discounts by future
purchases from the Group.

Measurement of revenue: Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts and is shown net of value-added
tax, sales discounts, sales return and after eliminating sales within
the Group. No element of financing is deemed present as the sales
are made with a credit term up to 30 to 180 days. A receivable is
recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

Accumulated experience is used to estimate the likelihood and
provide for sales discounts and sales return for the goods sold at the
time of sale.

Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits fo be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4.9 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
fo an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the cosfs, which it is infended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

410 Income taxes

Income tax represents the sum of current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
info consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the fax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the fransaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

— in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investment in a subsidiary, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
confrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

410 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that faxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

— in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investment in a subsidiary, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be ufilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is seftled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
intends fo settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF
4. IEESHBEHBE(E)

4.10 FriE®i (&)

PRARTHIR 2 B IEZ 5 - AR ARARIEE R MRS
BRI A DETCHAEE BTERBAEE HER

BARIARAREERRRANBBERZ CBRR © B
I

—  EBTUNAEBMRE RN EAER
8 EE—RTBEBA X BRBYRERTE
£ AR BB &R RIS R R Y
2 R

— HRPEMEBRAR BERRRAEREZREN

AREREEZRE  BEENAEEERERIEEZE
BRI P R R OR R EY B & IR AT A A% S
RSB T AR BRTOGNE - TR -

ERERAEE CREERSREMRETR - ERHAT
BRI ERVGE N AZ A 2 ARG 0 REH IR
BERTARRREE M ABRZECHREER SRS
HIRER G - BEA6EH B 2 JERRBE A A LA UL B 2
AR DRI IR B B R T ARERR

BEEFBIIARERARMEATZHEE EEHRITZHEK
(RBER)RER  RBPREZREENEERERHE
Rz B EFE(LERER) -

WREEHRIREER B BEER—REEERKRZ MSHE R
AAREEGRFRARGEANYNAEERABE AR
ERIBEEERABKEREE -

ANNUAL REPORT | 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

411 Foreign currency translation

Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB (the “presentation currency”),
while the functional currency of the Company is HK$. As the Group
mainly operates in the PRC, RMB is used as the presentation currency
of the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or franslation of monetary items are recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group’s net investment of a foreign operation. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are franslated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dafe when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is tfreated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item. The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than the presentation currency. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expense
items are translated into the presentation currency at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recorded in other
comprehensive income and the cumulative balance is included
in translation reserve in the consolidated statements of changes in
equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in translation reserve relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

411 Foreign currency translation (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the
cash flows of the Company and certain subsidiaries are translated
into the presentation currency at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of the
Company and these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into the presentation currency at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

412 Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan obligations

The Group operates a defined conftribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Conftributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group which operate in
the PRC are required to partficipate in the central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme as specified by the local municipal
government. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised by the Group to reduce
existing level of contributions for each of the years/periods.

e MR R MR (')

HE T -_FF+ - A=+—HIFFE
4, FESTHBEHME(E)

4.11 SR ()

REARRERERME mARBARETHEARZE S
MEDREARERELEAERCEXRERZTEE -
BREFEHREERELZAARRARZENBARZHS
MEBNRZFEZIMETHEXRBERZEE -

412 EETA

(i) EHESHEF

e FERA - STTREESERANER
HEARRTS 2 FEEE -

REER M

(i) FRERFEBRTEEF

AEBRBRHEDESHEGIAEMEETEREZE
REMRFBRHER aiLﬁVmﬂﬁi‘J(Hﬁ ErtEl]) e
TNT HIREEEAFE 2 RERDLFE - IRHFIRR
B ERARERNE AR 2ERERMNE - BES
AHEEER AKENEESHABUEERESRE -

REERFEEENBARIZEBELEEHMMENE
Mz PIRREEE - RSP BB A RZAEL MK
[FREZHERAB D IEATRRRNSFEIHK - 25
HRARIRIBEPRIBARSTER AR TR BLRE2EK
EEagil]Z

REFE/HE - AEEYESHERRHFTUARERE

IR »

ANNUAL REPORT | 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

413 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of
which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

414 Finance costs

Finance costs comprise borrowing costs, which are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its infended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of qualifying
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its infended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

415 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of the Group
or the Group's parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one enftity is an associate or joint venture of the other
enfity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an enfity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is confrolled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the enfity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

415 Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

416 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operafing segments and prepares segment
informatfion based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors of the Company for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported fo the chief operating decision makers
("*CODM") are determined following the Group's major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under IFRSs.

118 | ANNUAL REPORT

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF
4., FESTHBERUE(E)

415 BAER (&)

R-ANLZEBREREREBHAIZEZATEERE
TEEIREERIZATHEZARFEXE - A8

&

() ZALZFRREBIFREFS :

(i) ZALEBHFREMFEZFL &

(i) BALTHZATEBHREFEEZEZAL -

416 DE|E

AEBRBEARNRBNITEEMERBIEREGEREE
EBEMNE R LR & E B KRB 2 EMREH
BER > MBRIEEBDBRERDBER - HATES
BERRE((XBLERREDEBRZABMBEHNAZ
EBEMDRBARB I EXTETE

HERIF 8IE[EE DAL BT

AE BRI B R T o 5 2
1 HAR 5 B R B 7 o o5 2 R AR B B

EREFTAZ AT EBBURE
BMmERAERERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires
the directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accountfing estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following items are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is
any indication that non-financial assets with definite lives may
be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the assefs in accordance with fthe
accounting policy stated in Note 4.4. In assessing whether there
is any indication that non-financial assets may be impaired, the
Group considers indications from both internal and external sources
of information such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in market condifions
and economic environment. These assessments are subjective and
require management’s judgements and estimations.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assefs are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking intfo account their estimated residual values.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly.
The estimated useful lives are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and ftaking info account anficipated
technological changes. The depreciation expenses for future periods
are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Provision for impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment loss on trade and
other receivables resulting from the inability of the customers/debtors
to make the required payments. A significant amount of estimate
and judgement is required in assessing the ulfimate realisafion of
these receivables which is based on the ageing of the receivable
balance, customers/debtors’ credit-worthiness, and historical write-
off experience. If the financial conditions of customers/debtors
deteriorate, additional provision for expected credit loss may be
required.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group recognises write-down on inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of the inventories. Write-
down is applied to the inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is less than
cost. The determinatfion of net realisable value requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact carrying value of
the inventories and write-down on inventories charged to profit or
loss in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Provision for income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions in which the
Group operates. Significant judgement is required in determining
the tax liabilities to be recognised. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises provisions for tax based on estimates of the
taxes that are likely to become due. The Group believes that its
provision for tax is adequate for the year based on its assessment
of many factors including past experience and interpretations of
tax law. Where the final tax outcome is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
income fax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has three reportable segments which are the Group's
strategic business units, as follows:

Aerosols — Sales of spray paints and automotive
care products, including spray paint,
carburetor cleaner, spray wax, anti-
rust spray lubricant, polyurethane foam,
cleaning spray and spray refrigerant for
automobile air-conditioners

Organic silicone — Sales of product series, which are all
adhesives silicone-based adhesives
Synthetfic adhesive —  Sales of several product series, which are

all multi-purpose contact adhesives

Information about strategic business units of other operating
segments that are not reportfable in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating Segments are consolidated and disclosed in “All other
segments”.

These strategic business units offer different products, and are
managed separately because they require different technology and
marketing strategies. For each of the strategic business units, the
chairman of the Company, who is the CODM of the Group during
the year, reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis.
There was no aggregation of operating segments in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

(a) Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocatfing
resources between segments, the CODM monitors the resulfs
aftributable to each reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment profit represents the gross profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration expenses (including
emoluments of directors and senior management, listing expenses),
selling and distribution expenses, other income and gains and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Group's CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)
(a) Segment results (continued)

The CODM reviews the Group's assets and liabilities as a whole
without allocation to each segment. In his opinion, all strategic
business units consume similar materials and their products are
produced by same machinery and equipment and then they are
sold to same customers. As a result, it is not necessary to monitor
the assets and liabilities under different segments. No segment
information on assets and liabilities is presented accordingly.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
generated revenue primarily from the sale of three categories
of products under these segments. The following table sets out
the breakdown of the revenue and segment profit by reportable
segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
Revenue from external customers and

BE-Z-ZF+-A= + HLEFE
RENPEF 2B RA 28R BhE
reportable segment revenue

— Point in time — B

Reportable segment profit REE G

BE_Z-NF+-A=t+—RL#F
REHNBEP 2 BRI 285 B

it

For the year ended 31 December 2019 E
Revenue from external customers and
reportable segment revenue

— Point in time — B

Reportable segment profit QXL Yoy
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RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
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529,740 144,422 60,713 734,875
191,714 31,354 17,309 240,377
483,653 141,805 74,047 699,505
144,496 37,478 17,147 199,121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

6. EdEE (M)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue and (b) WE2HmoMUMBFEMEBAFES BT ZH IR
consolidated profit before income tax
A reconciliation of segment revenue to consolidated revenue is 7 EB YR BRAR S W am 2 EEBR 2540 -
presented as follows:
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT AR¥Fr
Total reportable segment revenue PEEGET ek 734,875 699,505
All other segments revenue (Note) A E 5 Sl () 105,114 114,511
Consolidated revenue iR W 839,989 814,016
A reconciliation of segment results to consolidated profit before DI EEEHEAEHAIGZE RGN ZHEENWNT :
income tax is presented as follows:
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF
Total of reportable segments profit B GEY -kt 240,377 199,121
All other segments profit (Note) P E M7 ERE R (M 3E) 28,566 25411
Other income and gains = ONS T 5,390 2,944
Selling and distribution expenses HEREHERX (103,725) (102,135)
Administrative expenses THRX (92,886) (80,843)
Impairment losses on trade receivables B 5 EWTIEREER (27¢) (642)
Listing expenses iilah3 - (12,753)
Finance costs B &R A (3,785) (4,379)
Consolidated profit before income tax G IR AR & A 73,661 26,724
Note: Segment revenue and segment profit from other segments represent the Mt Huo o Dz R oI mFligsyezasrl C kR

sales of architectural coatings, oil products, wood paints and others.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %A BRI (E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEHHE(E)

(c) Geographical information (c) #HEHEHR

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal ARNBABEREERAR MAEBZ EBEEMI AR
place of the Group's operation is in the PRC. Substantial of CRIBZEFRIT-NFTZA=+—H  AEH
the Group's non-current assets are located in the PRC as at 31 REDIEMBEEMANFE - TRIBHASEIZIETS

December 2020 and 2019. The following table provides an analysis D BEINBEFPEELEZWRDIT
of the Group’'s revenue generated from exfternal customers by
geographical markef.

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AEEFT

The PRC F 807,095 788,926
Australia bl 30,449 23,862
Others Hft 2,445 1,228
839,989 814,016

(d) Information about major customers (d) EBFEEFHEHR

No revenue from a single external customer accounted for 10% or BE_ T ZFE-_FT—NF+_A=+—HIFE ¥
more of the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2020 MR EE IR Z WS AREBKR AR 10% A E o
and 2019.

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. WHEURHMKRARKZ

Revenue from the Group's principal activities, represents revenue REFBFZEBR 7 WSIEHETSEM R AR BELTIE
derived from the sales of hardware and building materials and mErEkEs HEE-EFL-_ZTE-NF+=-_RAR=+—
automotive maintenance industrial chemical products. Revenue BILEE DR Z WA R A RIRZEmT

and other income and gains recognised during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARKTFT ARETFT

Revenue (Note (i} Uegs (P3E (i) 839,989 814,016
Other income and gains Hen A Rk
Bank inferest income H|AFBHA 1,244 282
Rental income AL ON 747 564
Government subsidies (Note (i) T A5 8 (R EE (i) 2,356 1,836
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERRE MR — 183
Sundry income HIBKA 1,043 79
5,390 2,944

124 | ANNUAL REPORT



NO

TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For th

7.

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings
Interest on other borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities

Less:

Nofte:

e year ended 31 December 2020

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major
categories of products is disclosed in Note 6.

All sales contracts are for period of one year or less. The Group has
applied the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 to its sales
contracts such that the information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance obligations
under the contracts for sales of products that have an original expected
duration of one year or less is not disclosed.

The Group received unconditional subsidies of approximately
RMB2,230,000 (2019: RMB1,836,000) from the PRC Government during the
year as a recognition of the Group's conftribution to the development of
the local economy.

During the year, the Group also received Government grants of
approximately RMB126,000 (2019: Nil) from the Employment Support
Scheme, Subsidy Scheme for the Securities Industry and one-off subsidy
for transport trades under the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region which aims to retain
employment and combat COVID-19 epidemic.

There are no unfulfiled conditions or confingencies attaching to the
aforesaid granfs.

FINANCE COSTS

FEBTERAE

HtERAE

HEREFE

interest capitalised into property, plant and equipment
(Note)

During the year, the finance costs have been capitalised at an effective
interest rate of 6.38% (2019: 6.36%) per annum.

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF

GERE
(i

(ii)

Bt -

W ad DA e EL b WA % Wi (48D
REBERHRED ZHAEP A MG 2 I MK I 56

°

o]

MAHEEHNAT—FIURN - ARECHEHEANERE
B BREEAFISRE 121 R 2 EREEE - ML ER
BEAMASENERTERBEEAN(RERPFHR/—FX
VAR)IA T8 TR A B AERS - % AT B s 2 AR A Y

AREERE R B P BB BT 5 R 4 AR % 2,230,000
T(ZE—NF : ARK1,836,0007T) @ fERAEE MM
EEREHEB 2R -

RER  AEETREEEFHNTREBRFHEAESETZ
[RBLEIFTE - BFEEBFERMERERREN —FB
A BERBUT BN AR #126,000 T(ZF— A4 ¢ ) -
BRIRT BN B EREAE R COVID-19 K15

i B SR PR s i AR PR IR BB AR IR -

BE A

B BRIE  BERXEERMCZME ()

RMB’000 RMB'000
ABETT ANERTFT
8,227 6,988

97 =

393 394
(4,932) (3,003)
3,785 4,379

RERN BEKADZERFENX638%(ZF—N%F:
6.36%)EARAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %A BRI (E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE2—FE-_FFf+ - A=+—HIFFE
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. PFRETEBLADGER
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: MR ER AT M TR A T & IBEED -
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT
Auditor's remuneration ZEEE S 935 882
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRBRI 2 FERA 571,046 589,484
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) ME  BRELRENTE(HE14) 9,793 8,909
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15) FRREERE (MF15) 4,270 4,262
Impairment losses on trade receivables (Note 17) B RKTIEREER(HE17) 274 642
Written-off of property, plant and equipment [Note 14) MeEmE - BB R (M 14) 2,648 =
Net exchange loss [E R EEFE 308 210
Expenses relating to short-term leases REHEEBRS 438 —
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ EERAAL(BEESEHE (100K
remuneration (Note 10) and salaries in research and MERT P2 EHS) ()
development expenses) (Note (i))
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind — 5% ZBREVEF 81,110 71,139
— Discretionary bonus — WERA 5,631 3,594
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — RIREFIE IR 2,819 4,025
89,560 78,758
Research and development expenses (Note (ii)) BB (B2 (i)
— Material consumption — MHEEE 16,486 19,359
— Employee benefit expenses — RERFRX 17,006 13,631
— Others — At 3,156 3,716
36,648 36,706
Notes: BiEE -
(i) Employee benefit expenses are included in cost of sales, seling and (i) BEEMASZIEFABEERE - HERCHMAZARITERA
distribution expenses and administrative expenses. X o
(ii) Research and development expenses are included in administrative (if) MEREZBEFAITHAE
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %S B MERHE(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 10. EE - BEETBRAE - EERSFMALR
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR SEEEAEMS
MANAGEMENT

(a) Directors and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBRESTHRAEMSE

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of RIEETRA - REHEMEE383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (c) & (f) 1§
the Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure URARI(BEEENEER)RPIFE 25 - AEEET 2
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, details of NAIAARBEEZ N2 MEFEET

emoluments paid by the companies comprising the Group to the

directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit

Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total

He 2R ERER
EEHe BMER TR Fobay
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT AREFT AR FT

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-T-ZF+-H=+—HLFE
Executive directors HOES
Mr. Emest Chen (Note (ii)) Bk A7 58 2 A (PR B (i) 892 860 20 1,772
Mr. Chen Bingyao (Mr. Leo Chen) PR 128 5 A (B3 (1))
(Note (ii)) 892 614 26 1,532
Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun (Note (iii)) R 2t 5 A (i (iil) 892 - 16 908
2,676 1,474 62 4,212
Independent non-executive directors BYEWTES
Ir. Daniel Lai (Note (iv)) e 155 TR2 A (Pf3E (iv)) 128 — - 128
Mr. Yeung Chun Yue, David (Note (iv)) BIRT 5 A (M &E (iv) 128 - - 128
Mr. Xu Kai (Note (iv)) Frel e (MR (iv) 128 - - 128
384 — — 384
3,060 1,474 62 4,596
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_E-AFE+-A=+—-HLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Emest Chen (Note (ii)) ok 7 58 4 A (P 5 (i) — 510 19 529
Mr. Leo Chen (Note (ii)) PRI 5T A (BT 3E (i) — 349 13 382
Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun (Nofte (iii)) R A (M (i) — - — —
— 879 32 911
Independent non-executive directors BYUFNTES
Ir. Daniel Lai (Note (iv)) R 5B TA2E (P 5 (iv)) — — — —
Mr. Yeung Chun Yue, David (Note (iv)) BIRF LA (iv) — — — —
Mr. Xu Kai (Note (iv)) e A (TR (iv) — — — —
— 879 32 911
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors and chief executive’'s emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i) Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind are generally emoluments
paid in respect of the directors’ other services in connection with the

management of the affairs of the companies comprising the Group.

(ii) Mr. Ernest Chen is also the chief executive of the Company. During the
year, Mr. Ernest Chen and Mr. Leo Chen received emoluments from
companies comprising the Group for their appointment as directors of
those companies.

(iii) Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun was appointed as executive director of the Company
on 15 April 2019.

(iv) Ir. Daniel Lai, Mr. Yeung Chun Yue, David and Mr. Xu Kai were

appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company on
13 December 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for the year,
include three (2019: two) directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details
of emoluments paid fo the remaining two (2019: three) highest paid
individuals of the Group are as follows:

Fe RRREWET
SRR A5 B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Retirement benefit scheme
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E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

10. EX - BETBRAE - AEREFMALR
SEEEAEME (R

(o) EERESTERASME(H)
BaE

(i) o RUMREDENBESARESRAETHASERT ZA
AEBERMANZEE -

(i)  BRWEEEMBARDRZITHAE - FA - RFBEERRK
REEREZERZERNRZEFAAKEAT 22 FUHRE

% o

(i) REBEER-Z-NFEUATHARAEZERARARNTE
g

(iv) BHBTBTRRM BERFEE FIEER-_T-AF+=A
TZARRERRATBILIFRITES -

TR BEEFEREIARAERETAHS 2ZH(=F
—hEFE) e

FR AREBEAESIVHEEARENATEER
RN MAR KB 2 RR A RBERHEE(ZT NG
@) o

AN

(b) HEESHMALHE

FRAZEEARRFMAL(DRIBREARAZ=42(=F
—NEFMBIER)ZMERN L2522 DA P RER
ENTFAKESRTRE(CZT-NF: ZR2)&SHFMA
TZMEFBMOT

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ANEBTFT
713 709

4 25

717 734



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the non-director highest paid individuals are
within the following bands:

Nil fo HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000 %7

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2019: Nil).

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The number of senior management (excluding the directors of the Company)
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

10. EX - BETBRAE - ARREFMALR
EEEEAEME (R

(b) ZEEZSHFMALME(E)
HEFRZRSFMALHMEN FIATEE

2 3

FR - AEERENTINZSEEEARaHFHA TS
EAMAREBERRINANERS 2 55E) - SIEBBRE
EB(—ZE—NE: &E)-

(c) EEEEAEME
MeENTUTHEZEEERBAS(TRIEARAES)
ZABIT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000/ T 4 4
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. FEHAX
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTL
Current tax expense B EEX
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — REMERER(CEMER] 9,178 4,867
— Over-provision of income tax expense in the prior year — BEFERBREMEHRY (840) (2,024)
Deferred tax credit BEHEESR
— The origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note — — 24 & BB &5 =48 (3 25)
25) (497) (54)
Income tax expense BRI X 7,841 2,789

The Group is subject fo income tax on an enfity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax under these
jurisdictions during the year (2019: Nil).

REBARAEBK B RRITE MG EREREERESL
HEEZ S F - REREEMAAEH -

RIEHSHENRABRABRSRULRL - AEERFR
BAGMNZEREER 2 EFAMGER(ZE—NEF &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

No provision for income tax has been made for the subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong as the subsidiaries did not have any
estimated assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during
the year (2019: Nil).

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the "EIT Law”)
and the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the subsidiaries
operatfing in the PRC are subject to the tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%)
on the estimated assessable profits during the year except for three
(2019: four) of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC which were
approved to be high and new technology enterprises (“HNTE").
Enterprise approved to be HNTE are entitled to enjoy a reduced
enterprise income tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) and additional 50%
(2019: 50%) tax reduction (“Tax Reduction”) based on the eligible
research and development expenses with a validity period of three
years. Guangdong Sanvo Chemical Industry Technology Limited,
Guangdong Sanvo Holdings Co., Limited and Guangdong Fuvo
Industrial Co., Limited (2019: Guangdong Sanvo Chemical Industry
Technology Limited, Guangdong Shunde Sanvo Chemical Industry
Technology Limited, Guangdong Sanvo Holdings Co., Limited and
Guangdong Fuvo Industrial Co., Limited) were approved to be HNTE
and enjoyed the preferential tax rate and Tax Reduction for HNTE
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The HNTE certificate
needs to be renewed every three years so as to enable the
respective subsidiaries fo enjoy the reduced tax rate.

Income tax expense can be reconciled to the profit before income
tax as follows:

Profit before income tax BR BS54 Al

Tax calculated at the rates applicable to profit in the
tax jurisdiction concerned

Tax effect of concessionary tax rate BERE L HBTE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAHNRRAZ R E
Tax reduction for research and development expenses &Y 2 HEH 2

Tax effect of over-provision in prior year

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREBE B2

FIEHRAX

Income tax expense
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11. A< (E)

RER HREEZMRLZMERRLEEABHRNE
ABNGEHAE 2 EREHERTUERN - W ERZSHE
REMEHAEREF (T —NF &) -

RBPECEMGSTOE(EEMEVE D REEMEN
EERA - RFEA - RPEESEZMBARARMGE
AR IR 25% 2 B R M (—F — L4+ 25%) -+ 14
NEFERSHIRMER(RARMEE ) ZEH =
—E-hF IR RPEEEZME RIS - #
AERBHEMEE L CEERZERREEMEHREX
15% (ZF—N%F  15%) » LRBEABERNEFAXZAR
SN50% (—F—NF : 50%) 2 TR e ([ TR IR |) -
BRHAR=F - ER=FMIRZARIA - BER=F1Z
BEERARREREMEXRERAR(ZT-NF : ER
=M IR AERAR - ERIER=FLIERAGF - &
R=-VNEZERERAFDAMEREMNEXRER AR EFER
SHRMGE  TREHE-_ZE-_ZF+-A=+—HItF
EEERHBMERZ BBV RBERR - R XM
XEEEB=FEE USEHANBARTZER2H

P AS154 8 2 PT B2 B BT 155 A A M) 1 H B9 AR

RABHS A A ERER RN EA B HE

RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
73,661 26,724
19,081 6,945
(8.360) (4,158)
1,000 3,977
(4,568) (1,951)
(840) (2,024)

1,528 —
7,841 2,789



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %S B MERHE(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11. FiERiRx (&)

The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately AREBFRKRFBREENAREKS152,000T(=ZZF—N
RMB6,152,000 (2019: Nil) that will expire in one to five years for FEE)HEEE BEEANREBEEBEEERN —ZRERASR
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not B DAHKSHR R ERBUE F o NEE I AR Shitt SEIEHER
been recognised in respect of these losses as it is not considered BERIBEE - RAABBERGF B RBIEEHEZSE
probable that taxable profits will be available against which these TIEEE Z MK -

tax losses can be utilised.

12. DIVIDENDS 12. BE
(a) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company attributable (a) BERNEFERATNEBAZEREERE
to the year

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEBTFT

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period B Rl IR BRI 2 KRS S Z @A 3.0 51l
of HK$3.0 cents per ordinary share (2019: HK$2.4 cents (ZZ-NEF : SREAR2.4510)
per ordinary share) 10,794 9,357

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has RIEBHRBENZABARETERREHRRERE

not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period. aE
(b) Dividends payable to the owners of the Company attributable (b) EBREFAQXAEEAZLE—VHREERE  RE
to previous financial year, approved and paid during the year 7t IR 45
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year, HE-MBEERNZRBRE - RERIAELRS -
approved and paid during the year, of HK2.4 cents per SRR LA 2.4 1L
ordinary share 9,357 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on the
profit of approximately RMB65,820,000 (2019: RMB23,935,000) for the
year attributable to the owners of the Company and the weighted
average of 423,811,000 (2019: 337,500,000) shares in issue during the
year.

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 included
the weighted average effect of 90,000,000 shares issued upon the
share offering of the Company’s shares on 16 January 2020 and the
337,500,000 shares in issue prior to the Listing.

The 337,500,000 shares used to calculate the basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2019 represented the number
of shares of the Company immediately prior to the Listing as if the
shares had been in issue throughout the year ended 31 December
2019.

Diluted earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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13. BREF

SRERBMSRBEARRRE AREFREFHARE
65,820,000 7T(=F — N F : ARK23,935,0007T)F A

B BT & h#E 7 $9 8 423,811,000 (= F — 4
337,500,000 )&t & e

REBE_Z-ZFE+_A=+T—HLEEARFETRE
REFZ B i EBERR R RN R 777445—
A 175 BETTRR (9 2 & 18 35972 90,000,000 A i 15 &
A2 337,500,000 f& 2 1T AR {7 2 INHEF 15 ?ﬁ%"

REFERE_FT-NF+_A=1T—BLFESRER
B F# 337,500,000 A tn - BIAR A B B4 /AT AR ()
#E BOZERNBE_ZT-NF+-A=+—HLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At 1 January 2019
Additions

Transfer

Disposal

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Additions

Transfer

Written-off (Note|

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019

Charge for the year
Elimination on disposal

At 31 December 2019 and
1 January 2020

Charge for the year

Elimination on written-off

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

1053
R-R-BETZA=1-R
ZitHE
R=F-NE-R-H

Efxi
HERHH

RZB-8£+-A=1-A

FEFE
R-B-FE+-A=1-A

R-E-AE+-A=1-H

RMB'000
ARRTR

33310
1,862
5,030

40,202
1,843
7271

49,316

4,081
4,720

8,801
5,070

1387

35,445

31,401

RMB'000
ARBTR

32838
3516
1635

(29)

37,960
5,821
1413

(685)

44,509

11,598
3,163
(10

14751
3,480
(241)

17970

26,539

23,209

Note: The written-off was in relation to the deterioration of certain construction

in progress subsequent to a fire accident broke out in one of the

Group's production sites in November 2018.

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

14. 9% - BERRE

RMB'000
ARBTR

3,544
820
97

4,461
1510
9
(35)

6,028

1875
530

2,405
m
(1)

3,164

2,864

2,056

RMB'000
ARETR

4741
3
24

(129)

5,210
547

(130)

5,621

3012
418
(123)

3,305
402
(72)

3,635

1,992

1,905

RMB'000
ARETR

941
26

967

646

1,630

63
80

143
64

207

1,423

824

RMB'000
ARETR

41,544
23,194
(6989)

57,750
85,881
(9.422)
(2,149)

132,060

132,060

57,750

RMB'000
ARETR

116,918
29,790

(158)

146,550
95,619

(2999)

239,170

20,609
8,909
(133)

29,405
9,793
(351)

38,847

200,323

117,145

MiEE : ZMEE D ERE TERIREE  NhaRASEET —ELEE
BN T N\F+—ABENERH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's property, plant and equipment
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB22,120,000 (2019:
RMB37,967,000) and RMB8,254,000 (2019: Nil) were pledged for
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other borrowings, respectively
(Notes 22 and 23).

The Group does not have the fitle certificates for certain items of
buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
RMB10,156,000 (2019: RMB10,336,000) as at 31 December 2020.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group is
entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and use the above mentioned
properties and therefore the aforesaid matter does not affect the
ownership rights of the Group over these assets and hence did not
have any significant impact on the Group’'s consolidated financial
position as at 31 December 2020.
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AEEVESAETEFTREZERES  ZFHARZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019
and 1 January 2020

Additions
Written-off

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019
Depreciation for the year

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Depreciation for the year
Exchange alignment
Elimination on written-off

At 31 December 2020

Net carrying amount

At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

B AR

RZZ—-NAF—A—H"
—E-hE+ZA=+-BK
—T-ZF5—-H—H

NE

i

R-B-EF+=-A=1+—H

REHiTE

RZZT-NF—A—H

FRFTE

RZE-NF+ZA=T—HBkK

A B 4 86

R-Z-2F+-A=1+—-H

SREFE

W-B-®E+-A=+-8

R-ZE—-NF+=-A=+—H

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

15. ERAEEE
Leasehold

lands Building
HELH# gF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMFT ARKEFT
98,540 —
— 355
(263) —
98,277 355
4,262 —
4,262 —
4,129 141
- (9)
(263) —
8,128 132
90,149 223
94,278 —

Plant and
machinery Total
N Fo
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT ANR¥EFT
— 98,540
10,903 11,258
— (263)
10,903 109,535
— 4,262
— 4,262
— 4,270
— (9)
— (263)
- 8,260
10,903 101,275
— 94,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the recognised right-of-use assets
relate to the following types of assets:

Properties mE

Building BF
Leasehold lands in the PRC REAEL
Plant and machinery R 23
Net carrying amount BREHE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's right-of-use assets with
net carrying amount of approximately RMB85,743,000 (2019:
RMB89,093,000) were pledged for interest-bearing bank borrowings
(Note 22).

The prepaid land use rights of the Group will be expired on 8 August
2044, 30 June 2052, 24 December 2064 and 7 June 2068, respectively.

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

15. EREEER)

R-ZE-ZER-_FE—-AE+_A=+—0 SHREHE
BEBENTEINEELSR

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEE T
959 2,388

223 =
89,190 91,890
10,903 =
101,275 94,278

R-ZE-BF+-A=+—H AEEEEFENARE
85,743,000 T(=ZF— 1LF : AR 89,093,0007T) 2
A& EphsT BRITERIEAE IR (MIFE22) -

REE T AENBENRIERS IR ZZmmE AN
B —TRE-F~A=+8  —EANFE+-A-+MmA
E=EANFEAALRES -

16. RIMBRARAZRE — &AL H

RMB'000 RMB'000
ABETFT ARETFT
Investment in subsidiaries — at cost, unlisted RIB AR ZIRE — KA - L™ 3,449 1,228

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
companies with limited liability. The partficulars of which are set out
as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of

issued and
fully paid-up
Place and date share capital/
of incorporation/ registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital
ERTRER
R,
[{ip PN MR, R B R B R A5
Directly held:
HERF:
Olive Woods Investments  The BVI 12 December Us$1
Limited 2017
HERUHS 1€7T
—Z—+F+=R+t=H
Integrity Knights Group The BVI 25 April 2018 US$100
Limited
FESERRAA REELES 100%7T
—E-\fMA=+HA
Indirectly held:
BERS
Guangdong Sanvo The PRC 9 April 2002 RMB10,300,000
Chemical Industry
Technology Limited*
(Note (a))
ER=F{IREARAA HE AR
(BIzE (a)) —ZEE-®FPWANE 10,300,000
Guangdong Fuvo Industrial The PRC 28 October 2001 RMB1,380,000
Co., Limited* (Note (a))
BERENEEXERAA R AR¥E
(BI%E (@) —EE-F+A=+)N\RH 1,380,000 7T

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

16. RRBLRRZKRE — A7 (H)

Attributable equity interest
of the Group

AR EEE R
2020 2019
—e-®E  —T-AF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and place of
operation

ETRRBRERME

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REZR

Researching, developing,
manufacturing and sales of
chemical products in the PRC

RPEHRE - FH% - BEREELE

Efm

Researching, developing,
manufacturing and sales of
chemical products in the PRC

R BT - FE - RERFEELE
Eim
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

Name of subsidiaries

MEAREE

Guangdong Shunde

Sanvo Chemical Industry

Technology Limited*
(Note (b))

BERIEE=Ff{IAHRAR
(H¥3E (b))

Zhongshan Minhe
Chemical Industry
Technology Limited*
(Note (a))

FILIRAE TR AR A A
(B&E ()

Guangdong Fullteam
Chemicals Limited*
(Note (a))

BREBIEERRA
(Bf3E (@)

Guangdong Sanvo
Holdings Co., Limited*
(Note (b))

BER=FZERER AT
(B¥3E (o))

OWHK Limited

BERERRNF
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Place and date
of incorporation/
establishment

MM Rt B B A

The PRC 20 March 2003

HE
—EE=F=A=+H

The PRC 24 January 2013

B
—T—=%—fA=+WA

The PRC 8 December
2014

HE
—Z-WE+=ANAE

The PRC 2 June 2000

F
—FTTERH=H

Hong Kong 29 December
2017

B%
—E—tH+=-A=+AhA

Particulars of
issued and
fully paid-up
share capital/
registered
capital
ERTRARE
R,
RAFE

RMB500,000

AR
500,000 7T

RMB28,530,000

AR
28,530,000 7T

RMB1,130,000

AR

1,130,000 7T

RMB22,864,000

AR

22,864,0007T

HK$1

1B

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

16. RINBRARZKRE — FA2F (&)

Attributable equity interest

of the Group

rEERERE
2020 2019
i =F JIF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities and place of
operation

TEEBREXMHY

Researching, developing,
manufacturing and sales of
chemical products in the PRC

R EHE -
Em

%t REREELD

Manufacturing and sales of
chemical products in the PRC

R ESuE R HEBEm

Dormant

BEE

Researching, developing,
manufacturing and sales of
chemical products in the PRC

R BEHE  FE - JERHEE

Em

Investment holding

REZR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

16. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES — THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of

issued and
fully paid-up
Place and date share capital/
of incorporation/ registered
Name of subsidiaries establishment capital
ERTRAR
R,
RN EER FEMARSL, B B B BRAFE
American Sanvo Chemical Hong Kong 25 May 2018 HK$10,000
Technology Holdings
Limited
EBE =ML IREEE BE 10,000 % 7T
BRAR —T-N\FRAZ=+EA
French Fullteam Chemicals Hong Kong 25 May 2018 HK$10,000
Group Limited
BB EEEBRAA B 10,000 % 7T
—T-NFRA=+HA
Sanvo Construction (Hong Hong Kong 31 December HK$10,000
Kong) Limited 2020
ZMER(EB)ERRA BE 10,000 % 7T
—EEEF-RA=1—H
Notes:

(a)  These entities are wholly-owned foreign enterprises established in the
PRC.

(b)  These entities are limited liability companies established in the PRC.

* The English names of the companies established in the PRC represent
management’s best effort at franslating the Chinese names of such
companies as no English names have been registered.

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

16. RRBLRRZKRE — A7 (H)

Attributable equity interest
of the Group

A WA R
2020 2019
—2-%F -TNF
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% N/A
A

GEX

Principal activities and place of
operation

TEEBREXMH

Investment holding

RERR

Inactive

AR

Inactive

TR

(a) ZSFEBA/NPBIKIINIIGEEDRE -

(b) HZEEBANTEKRINEREMERF -

* BRZENPERZIAR R ETMREEHE  ZERFMRE
NEBDHEEERNREBEEAT LB ENS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES

Non-current portion

Current portion

AND PREPAYMENTS

FRBHBD
Prepayments for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment (Note (i))

REHD
B 5 WA
B REERE

Trade receivables
Less: Impairment loss

Bills receivables SEEMNGUR

Trade and bills receivables, net
Other receivables (Notes (i) and {iii))
Prepaid listing expenses
Prepayments (Note (iv))

B EMHAX

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(i)

It represents the amount prepaid to vendors for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment which was not yet delivered as at the end of each
reporting date.

As at 31 December 2020, balance of RMB525,000 (2019: RMB525,000)
included in other receivables, represents the amount due from a related
company which two of the executive directors are the beneficial owners
of this related company. The amount is interest-free, unsecured and
repayable on demand. The maximum amount due from that related
company during the year amounted to RMB525,000 (2019: RMB525,000).

The Group is intending to expand its market reach to Central China
in the future, concerning the growth in domestic provinces and
geographical advantage in logistic arrangements with distributors in
Eastern China, Northwest and Northeast China.

On 6 January 2020, the Group entered info a non-binding memorandum
of understanding (“MOU”) with an independent third party (“ITP”). The
ITP has conducted foreign trading activities in China for many years,
with extensive knowledge and networking channels across different
provinces in China.
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BNFR (M (iv)

E B Rk M R ()

=

17.

B REEENFBTFE
H W RRIR (PR 22 (i) R (iff))

GEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

TECFFEf A= HIFFE

WEME - BERREBEFEMSE ()

EZREBEWFIE HttEWRKIBEBRFAR
IE

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT ANREFT

18,803 10,695

70,790 62,009

(918) (642)

69,872 61,367

1,189 1,823

71,061 63,190

63,564 4,285

= 4,805

31,702 19,084

166,327 91,364

HENSRE ABEREBEBARNYE  BERRXBAET
BNZEHE -

RoP-TE+-AS+—B HEREKEBRBEARS
525,00070 (=T — A4 : AR 525,000 ) A — R B
DRPE - HEMERTEEARBB AT L EHRAN - &
REARE  WEAREEREE - FNEKKEYAARE
RESEAARES250007T(ZF— A4 : AR 525000
)
EEDENEHANE  TARER - PEEILHRELH
DUERTIRZ A - AR EFRA S 1515
KELE -

REZB-ZE—ARA ARBEE-2BYE=7([BIE=
FDANENRNZ mREsE((RRERE]) - BYE=)
ERFEETHINEZEDZF  HhRATRANOEERER
o WMERETBEATEESE -



NO

TES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For th

17.

Notes:

(i)

(iv)

e year ended 31 December 2020

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(continued)
(continued)

Pursuant to the MOU, the ITP will deliver to the Group industrial land
(land use rights) located in an authorised industrial park in Central
China which is suitable for the manufacturing of chemical related
products (the “Transaction”). The ITP will i) conduct the necessary
negotiation and lobbying work; ii) seek for preferential policies (i.e.
tax concession, foreign investment policy); iii) coordinate with all
relevant authorities to complete application procedures; and iv) obtain
any relevant approvals. Upon completion, the land use rights will be
delivered by way of set up in a wholly-owned foreign entity (“WOFE")
structure. Correspondingly, the Group agrees to provide repayable
short-term financial advancement (“Short-term Advancement”) to the
ITP to support the Transaction (i.e. land use rights deposit payments,
preliminary land adjustment construction work and etc.). The Short-
term Advancement amount will be deducted against the settlement
amount of the Transaction upon completion. The Group has the right
to i) terminate the MOU at any time before the ITP obtains the land
use rights and demand for repayment of all Short-term Advancement
made; ii) take over the ownership of the WOFE and the entitlement for
all payments/deposits made to the relevant authorities in the event the
ITP is unable to repay the Short-term Advancement; and iii) subject to
the legal and financial due diligence and after the issuance of the land
use rights certification, the Group will enter into an official sales and
purchase agreement with the ITP. The Transaction completion date must
not be later than 31 July 2021.

During the year, the Group had conducted onsite due diligence
works, including but not limited to, covering site visits, feasibility studies,
documentation audit (i.e. official invoice and receipts, bank supporting
documents for payments made to the relevant authorities for the land
use rights), interviews and discussions with the relevant authorities, and
provided RMB52,000,000 Short-term Advancement to the ITP in total. The
controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Ernest Chen (chairman of
the Board and executive Director) has provided personal guarantee for
the Short-term Advancement. (Note 29(b)).

After considering the financial capability of the ITP, the Directors
concluded that no allowance for ECL for the carrying amount of the
Short-term Advancement was required.

Prepayments for purchase of raw materials amounting to approximately
RMB17,693,000 (2019: RMB9,574,000) were included in prepayments. The
remaining amount of approximately RMB14,009,000 (2019: RMB9,510,000)
were mainly prepayments for the supplier services to support the
Group's ordinary business.

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF

17.

B -
(i)

(iv)

BEERRBRWE HttEWRREREN

R ()

(%)

()

RIESREES  BYE=HBMAREL R EPERT

XERITEANEEC THBE R TEM (L ERE)
(T%ZZS]) - BUFE=FRI)ETHHE 2B REHRITIE:
i) = KA F R AV R R~ SN R AR ¢ i) BT A AR
BREGETXRBEF - Riv) BRISEMBRELLE - RFEK
% TERERARIIMNESBEER(VIHBEEERDAE
ZHRRN o it - ARBERBRABLE=NREATEEZ
EHMPBRR(EHRR]) - UXFHZERZ (AL AR
BNR - MFLBFBTERSE) - EHBRSFHRTRER
ZRXSHENTEPHR - ARBEERI)RNBLF=TRELH
ERERERBRALFRETS  TEREEMACELZ
REEIER i) MBI 8 = EREE R BRSBTS
BEARR HEREAEARBMEZMENR Re 2 H
B R FETERRMBERES RE L L6 BEE
% AEEKEBIF=TFIZEXNEE R - 25K A
HIEER T —FtA=+—-RH-

RER AEECETEHNEREDS  BERETRNRELE
B ATHAE  XHERBIEXBZRWE - Lk
REMABKEETNRZRITEAMS) - BABKEE
TR kEH AMBLE=ZFRESHEREHARE
52,000,000 7T ° AR FHERRAR SRR M58 58 4 (B F & fEFRH%
TER)ERERBEFEREAERIFE29(0))

BERBIUFE=F2HMBENR  EFRABAREHEIE
EEZ AR EEE R RES -

BERMBZEMNREHARKE7,693,000T(ZF— N
F: AR¥%9,574,0007T) EFF ATRNFIE - REHARE
14,009,000 7T(=F—N%F - AR¥9,510,00070) 2 K3
REE A EER 2 R RIGRN SR -

ANNUAL REPORT | 141



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

All of the trade and bills receivables and current portion of prepayments and
other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

The credit period for trade receivables is normally 180 days (2019:
180 days) from the date of billing for the year. The ageing analysis of
frade and bills receivables based on due date and net of allowance
for impairment loss, is as follows:

Current BN &g
Less than 1 month PR1EA
Over than 1 month but less than 3 months

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for the year
are set out in Note 31(b).

18. INVENTORIES

Raw materials R#
Work in progress &
Finished goods S

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Group’s inventories (2019:
RMB16,406,000) were pledged for interest-bearing bank borrowings
(Note 22).
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BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

17. EFRFEBEWFIE  HBERRERAN
ITAIE(IIE)
BaE : (B)

P B 8 5 I S5 FE MR IR A R FR A 3R N H At FE MR ORI B B0 3 TR
KR —FRRE S ER B

BHRWHKEBEZ EENRFARZEZAHE —&R180

BBIEABIRIMEA

B(ZF—N%F :180H) - TRHFIAAAKEENEIH
B RMEREREREER 2B S RFEERRERE D
i
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTE  ARETL
69,098 55,734
1,302 7,456
661 —
71,061 63,190
FATE 5 EUFIRET 2R E RS2 7F 158N K &
31(b) °
7E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTE  ARETT
29,844 27,164
5219 4,133
27,944 25,710
63,007 57,007

RIBZZEF+T_A=+—H FrEEITEFRE(ZZ
—NF - ARM 16,406,000 7T) EAERFHERITERZE

Mz 22)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents represents cash at banks and cash on
hand.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB52,411,000 (2019: RMB14,754,000) and were kept in the PRC. RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by
the PRC Government.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank deposits of
approximately RMB35,767,000 (2019: RMB20,700,000) were pledged
for the issues of bills payables for the Group's purchases of raw
materials (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank deposit of RMB2,300,000
(2019: RMB2,300,000) was also pledged for guarantee to complete
the construction work within a scheduled time table for the prepaid
lease payments acquired in prior years. The Group would be subject
to penalty if the Group failed to fulfill the scheduled deadline. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, there is no delay on the
construction work and no provision for penalty was required to be
made in the consolidated financial statements.

The pledged bank deposits and bank balances carry interests at
market rate ranging as follows per annum:

BEARTER
RITAER

Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF
19. EEARTERURREERESEEY
Re MRS EBMBRITERLFERS -

RITRERIBE A RITERM R E 2% 8 F X REF
B RITEREREERFIRNEEDREZRT

REZ-ZTF+ -_F=+—H AEENUARKE
DR B/ARES2411,000T(ZE—NF: AR
14,754,000 0) 2 RE RIS HEYHHERRTE - AR
BEZEMAR/EMER MEtTFEEHESAXTER
& b2 SMNEE IR HIPTHRIR

R-ZTE_ZTFE+-_AF=Z+—H AEBMHARE
35,767,000 L(ZZF— N4 : AR 20,700,000 7T ) 7
AEFHEIEAAEBBE REATRITZ ZREMNKIEA
(Ft3E20) °

RZB-FFAZ ﬂ T—H  AEBERTEROARE

2,300,000 L( = ZF—AF : AR 2,300,0007T) 75 5t 8

EEVWH&Z@%ZT‘EHESWE C RTEERBRAER - A

BERTKEETIE - IAKBEAREETRERLLFR -

E‘JZISE%/A*‘?%X% CARBEERR BEIRAUEL
MR B B F R P B R A SRR -

EEMRITERLRITEREFRTSMEAERNT -

1.35% 1.35%
0.00% to £ 0.00% to =
0.30% 0.30%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %A BRI (E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, CONTRACT 20. ESREBENFRIE  BERH  S0EE

LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES K ELfth FE A4 7R IH

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT

Trade payables (Note {i)) B 5 AR (M3 (i) 128,883 106,089
Bills payables (Note {ii)) AR (P (i) 38,135 21,945
Accrued expenses eI 3,379 3,791
Accrued employee benefit expenses JEHE BB AIAX 17,344 14,851
Accrued listing expenses JEET EiR 2 — 10,698
Deferred income - current portion (Note 24) BB — R E 5 (i3 24) 38 38
Contract liabilities (Note {iii)) BHE B (i) 13,464 12,020
Other payables (Note (iv)) 2B (B3 (iv) 41,176 17,390
242,419 186,822

Notes:

(i) The credit period received from suppliers of the Group is ranging from

30 to 90 days (2019: 30 to 90 days) for the year. The ageing analysis of

frade payables based on invoice date is as follows:

i

(i) AEBHERMBEHZEERN FI0EQRA(ZFE—NF:
30E90H) - MEFHMZEHENFAERKDFAT -

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETFT AREFT

Within 1 month —EAR 94,690 73,054
Over 1 month but less than 3 months BB—EAEIR=EA 28,926 30,106
Over 3 months but less than 1 year BB=EARIR—F 3,595 2,256
Over 1 year BA—F 1,672 673
128,883 106,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

20.

Notes:

(ii)

(i)

At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance

at

(iv)

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, ACCRUALS, CONTRACT
LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(continued)

At 31 December 2020, bills payables of approximately RMB38,135,000
(2019: RMB21,945,000) were secured by pledged bank deposits (Note
19).

Contract liabilities represent billings in advance of performance in
regarding the sales of hardware and building materials and automotive
maintenance industrial chemical products.

When the Group receives a deposit before the products are delivered
to the customers, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until revenue recognised exceeds the amount of the deposit.
The Group typically receives full deposit on acceptance of orders for all
customers, except for the major customer. In previous years, the amount
of the deposit, if any, was negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers.

Contract liabilities also include the provision of sales discounts of
approximately RMB3,002,000 (2019: RMBS5,635,000) as at 31 December
2020. Sales discounts are offered to the customers when the customers
meet the predefermined annual sales target. The customers can utilise
these sales discounts from future purchases from the Group.

The following table shows the opening and closing balances of contract
liabilities for each reporting period and how much of the revenue
recognised during each reporting period relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities:

REH
RER

the beginning of the year

Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 have increased by
approximately RMB1,444,000 which was due to the increase in
customers’ deposits. Contract liabilities as at 31 December 2019 had
decreased by approximately RMB10,342,000 which was due to the

Group fasten the delivery process close to the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2020, balance of approximately RMB5,943,000
(2019: Nil) included in other payables, represents the amount due to a
director, Mr. Ernest Chen. The amount is non-trade in nature, interest-

free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

e MR R MR (')

HE-F-TE A=t ALEE

20. EZREBEMNNRE  BIER  GHNAE
R E AR RE(E)

BRE - (%)

(if)

(i)

SAENANBEERZERARE

(iv)

RZZ_ZF+_A=Z+—H HHAR¥38,135000T 2 FE
BREMNFRBE(ZZ-AF  ARK21,945,0007T) @ 2 HIFR
TR IERER (FIRE19) ©

HEREAMHER SR RTEER L TERZBELAE

°

oo

EAKEREMRN TEFAPNEIRER - LR AN
BRELGHNEE BEECHARGERRSERE - KIER
PZoh REB—RRESIMETP 2T ERREERE - 1
BEFE ReeB(WA) HIZERNEERT S EHEKE

.
E e

BHNEETEBER -_E-_TF+_A=t—RRHEHEENH
D RI# AR #3,002,000t(ZF — N4« AR 5,635000
L) BERPEINEEFEHEEBEN  AgREFRHEHEE
Pl - BERARARRAAEBETEERBHBZSHENN -

TRINFRERERENABEZ BN RPREHRARN SRS
HoERRasEEg A anaE 2z \mEE

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFTL
12,020 22,362
13,464 12,020
(12,020) (22.362)
R-ZEZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H AHABEMNOARE
1,444,0007C * YEREFPIZESEMAE - R=ZT—NF+=
A=+—H 488 BEKRLHARE10,342,0007T * LTy
RAEEREIRE BREINRISEFAAE -
RZZZZF+ZA=1+—H ' st AEMBERNFIBZE8RHOA
R#¥5,943,000 (=T —N&F : E)EEN—BESHRMAL
ERIE - 22 HBIIHFBEHHEE  WARE - BEFRIZRENRE

8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %A BRI (E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE
21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. HEAE
The following table shows the remaining contractual matures of the TREMMEEHEAENAFERBTFE ZFBREL
Group's lease liabilities at the end of current and prior years: FH
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ANEE T

Total minimum lease payments SEHENEAR
Within one year —FR 3,606 1,937
Within a period of more than one year but not more than two ~ BB—FELZRMEHRHER
years 2,688 971
Within a period of more than two years but not more than five BBREEFZ R RELHRERA
years 2,821 567
Within a period of more than five years ZRAFHHEA 9,879 10,072
18,994 13,547
Less: total future interest expenses B AR B BRAT (8,443) (7,974)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARRE 10,551 5,573
Less: portion classified as current liabilities B ABERRBARZES (2,955) (1,635)
Non-current liabilities FnBAE 7,596 3,938
The following amounts relating to leases were recognised to the NER  LATNEBEEEZREENEABERESR
consolidated profit or loss during the year:
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARKFT AERTT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets — properties FRESEZFER: — N% 1,865 1,857
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets — leasehold land TREEE HERX — PEBESE L
in the PRC 2,405 2,405
Total depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (Note 15) FREEEZERY AR (HF15) 4,270 4,262
Interest expenses included in finance costs (Note 8) STARERA R 8L (HFES) 393 394
Expense relating fo short-term leases (included in FRRBREsAZ (B ATTEAR)
administrative expenses) 438 18
5,101 4,674

The total financing cash outflow for right-of-use assets during the FRAZHFERAEEREZLRERSRHEELN B ARK
year was approximately RMB2,462,000 (2019: RMB2,073,000). 2,462,000 L(=ZE—NF : AR¥2,073,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %S B MERHE(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE T -_FF+-A=+—HIFFE
22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 22. FFERITER
RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ANEE T

Current k)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings — secured (Note) SERITEH — BEM(ME) 79,277 71,047
Non-current R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings — secured (Note) HERIER — BEB(HE) 54,878 53,763
134,155 124,810
Note:Interest was charged in the range of 4.90% to 6.47% (2019: s RoE-_SEGRHEE  REFNE490%E6.47%:H8(=F
5.56% to 6.47%) per annum for FY2020. —NF : 5.56%FE 6.47%) °
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, total current and non-current RZBZZFRZZ-NAFTZA=+—H R"EEIER
interest-bearing bank borrowings were scheduled to be repaid as B R MITERERIRERPERBERAT
follows:
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ANERFT

Within one year —%R 79,277 71,047
Within a period of more than one year but not SZR—FEALRMEFHEA
more than two years 11,758 8,147
Within a period of more than two years but not ZRMEETLRAFHEA
more than five years 20,496 19,583
Within a period of more than five years SRAFHERN 22,624 26,033
134,155 124,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

22. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group'’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings were secured by the following assets:

RE M BHRME(E)
HE-F-—FFEF - HA=+—HIFFE
22. FHERBRITER(E)

RERERR - REBZFBRITERA TIEEE/E
i

RMB’000 RMB'000

ABEFT AREF

Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) I ER N E AR 22,120 37,967
Right-of-use assets (Note 15) EREEE 5 85,743 89,093
Inventories (Note 18) FE(MF18) — 16,406

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings of approximately RMB134,155,000 (2019: RMB124,810,000)
were also guaranteed by certain subsidiaries (2019: Guaranteed
by certain subsidiaries, the ultimate confrolling shareholder and an
executive director of the Company).

23. OTHER BORROWINGS

Current B

Other borrowings — secured (Note) HipfEm — BEEA(H)
Non-current FEEDHR

Other borrowings — secured (Note) HipfgH — BEEM ()

Note: Interest is charged at 6.45% (2019: Nil) per annum for the year.

148 | ANNUAL REPORT

RZEZZF+_A=Z+—B FAEBMPARK
134,155,000 C 25t BHRITER(ZE—NF: AR
124,810,000 7C) IR E FHWEB AR (ZZE—NF : ARQF]
ZETHBRAR RERERBRRER —ZRITES)ELE
R o

23. HfER

RMB’000 RMB'000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

In September 2020, the Group entered into agreements with
financing companies, independent third parties, pursuant to
which the Group has agreed to transfer the ownerships of certain
machineries (the "Machineries”) fo the financing companies
as disclosed in Note 14, at an aggregated consideration of
approximately RMB38,331,000 and lease back the Machineries
for a period of 3 years, subject to the terms and conditions of the
agreements. The financing companies will return the ownerships
of the Machineries to the Group upon the completion of the
fransactions. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, despite
the agreements involve a legal form of a lease, the fransfer of legal
title of Machineries dost not satisfy the requirement of IFRS 15 to be
accounted for as a sale of the Machineries and hence, the Group
accounted for the proceeds received as collateralised loans.

At 31 December 2020, total current and non-current other borrowings
were scheduled to be repaid as follows:

Within one year —FR

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF

23. HER (&)

“RoTFNA AREEMBAROBIE=TT)FT
LA - B BWMEI4MEE AEEER
A THEB(ZSRE D ZREARBETRSIUER
CHREBHRARKE38,331,0007T - HRHEMZEFK
2 RH3E - ERZF MR ZIFNAREAR - ZFR
BRABRZEXGTREAARERMZE RS 2 HE
B RARREBEERBR BEXSFTWHRESIEERAZH
E MBEZSERREREERI T A BBV ERE
ZRIFI1SHZMEAARINEHEZSTHES - Hit - A
& B P 2 PSSR A SRDIEIR R E R -

bk %

il

§ ol

ZRF+TA=+—HB RBRFERBDEMERR

RMB’000
AREFT

RMB'000
ANERFT

14,001 =

Within a period of more than one year but not more than two B —FBA% KM F R R

years

12,750 =

Within a period of more than two years but not more than five HBBRFEETZHREELER

years

At the end of each reporting period, the Group's other borrowings
were secured by the following assets:

11,000 =

37,751 =

REBMEMR - AEBZHERA TIEEERER

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREF
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) WmE - WE R (T 14) 8,254 =

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's other borrowings of
approximately RMB37,751,000 (2019: Nil) were guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

MZZE-_ZFE+-A=+—HBH KEEBHARE
37,751,000 t(ZZF—NF : 8) 2 EMERBARAT 2
ATHERGHELER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL %A BRI (E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. DEFERRED INCOME

Government subsidy arising from the acquisition of leasehold
land in the PRC

Represented by:
Current portion (Note 20)
Non-current portion

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

24. EFEWA

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKFT ARETFT

ELfBYWETRES DB

1,723 1,761
RE
MENER A (M3E 20) 38 38
e o 1,685 1,723
1,723 1,761

The Group has land use right in respect of a piece of leasehold land NEFBNAPE —IRBE T ES L (E BREGGE A BHE
in the PRC, included in right-of-use assets, for building a new factory BESZH) UERILTERIHRE - AATZHEB AT
in Zhongshan City. Zhongshan City government provided subsidy P RIRAME TRER AR AR ARWE R 12 A NTk %
as a reward when Zhongshan Minhe Chemical Industry Technology +ih b SRR TR - LT BRFIRE S ELER) - 327
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, completed the filling work BTENEBEEENHTA  AEERBEEE D WY
on the land within 12 months after the commencement date of the AR#1,914,000 7T 2 %8 °

lease. The filling work was completed as scheduled in prior years and

the Group received the subsidy of approximately RMB1,914,000 in

prior years.

Deferred income is amortised over the lease term of the above FRBELEWAREEGMBEL W 2B SRR  TEF
leasehold land and recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Wi EIERRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 4R & BTSSR BHIEE(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -_FF+ - A=+—HIFFE

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25. BEEREEE (BF)

Details of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and FRAERRELCRBEE,(AB)REFZFBUOT
movements during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE

Tax loss

available

for

offsetting

against

Credit future
loss taxable

allowance profits
A RREH
RRRB
Az
BEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETRT

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H — 473 473
Credited/(charged) to consolidated profit or loss for & A/ (308 ERGARBE (M)

the year (Note 11) 96 (473) (377)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZF-NF+ZA=+—-RARZZT=T5—-F—AH 96 — 96
Credited to consolidated profit or loss for the year HAFRGAER(E)

(Note 11) 42 = 42
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBF+-A=t—-A 138 — 138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) (CONTINUED)

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

25. BREBHEEE (BE) (F)

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 RZZF-NE—A—H (4,038) (338) (4,376)
Credited to consolidated profit or loss for the year HAERGZABR(ME)

(Note 11) 421 10 431
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-B-hE+-B=+-AR-F-F4-f-A (3,617) (328) (3,945)
Credited to consolidated profit or loss for the year AAFRGRABEHEN)

(Note 11 445 10 455
At 31 December 2020 R-2-BE+-H=+-A (3172) (318) (3,490)

Pursuant to the EIT Law, 10% withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to
non-PRC tax resident investors for the companies established in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, all the PRC subsidiaries are
directly or indirectly held by non-PRC tax resident investors. As such,
temporary withholding tax differences relating to the undistributed
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB141,267,000 (2019: RMB77,586,000) as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB14,127,000 (2019: RMB7,759,000) have not been recognised in
respect of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained earnings, as the Company is in a position tfo control the
dividend policy of the PRC subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

26. SHARE CAPITAL

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF

26.

R

RMB'000
ARBEFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREERO0.01ET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—H—H 39,000,000 313
Increase in authorised share capital on 13 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA+=BEMEERA (M (a))
(Note (a)) 1,461,000,000 13,074
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and R-ZE-hE+=-A=+-H - ZE-EF-F-HEK
31 December 2020 “B-BFtZA=+-H 1,500,000,000 13,387
Issued and fully paid: BETREAR
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZ-NE—A—H ZZ-NE+-A=+—HEk
“T-TF—-F—H 100 —*
Issue of shares arising from Reorganisation (Note (b)) REAmETRR (M (b)) 337,499,900 2,994
Issue of shares arising from share offer (Note (c)) ERNEEMBITRA (M3 () 90,000,000 798
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-ZFF+-F=+-H 427,500,000 3,792

* Less than RMB1,000
Notes:

(a) On 13 December 2019, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$390,000 divided into 39,000,000 Shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each to HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000
Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an additional
1,461,000,000 Shares of par value of HK$0.01 each pursuant to the
written resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Company.

(b) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the Directors on 13 January
2020, 323,999,904 Shares and 13,499,996 Shares were allotted on 15
January 2020, and issued at par value of HK$0.01 each to Mr. Ernest
Chen and Mr. Victor Heng, respectively as fully paid at par, by way of
capitalisation of the sum of HK$3,375,000 debited to the share premium
account.

(c)  On 16 January 2020, 90,000,000 Shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each
of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.30 per Share by way of
share offer. On the same date, the Shares were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

* DR AR1,0007T

GERE

(a)

(b)

(c)

ANZE-NFTZRA+=H EBAARRTBBENEDRR
ZEIRHREEINAY1,461,000,000 A & AL EE 0.01 78 TT Y B 17
AN A B)VE TE AR AN B3 390,000 78 7T 43 4 39,000,000 A% 5 AR E (&
0.0178 7T 2 M 17 18 0 = 15,000,000% JT 53 7% 1,500,000,000
B EEO0.01 BTz ity -

REBEEER _Z_ZF-AT=ZABBENEERE
323,999,904 1% I 19 ]2 13,499,996 kIR A R —F — T F — A
THAWEBEACF AR 4 B BR 3,375,000 8 7T A& #UA
FREEO0.01 B ITIMER RN N RIALE RIEHT TRNEEL
ERTBRHEFEE -

RZZE_TF—H+/"HB &2 790,000,000 & k& HE
0.01BTTH A B BN B EX SR 1.30B T ERE
17 AA  BRORBRAER L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

27. RESERVES 27. #E

ERARBERBES FBHENGERERBHR - FEA
RAFEBEE 2 FBHINWT

Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are as set out in
the consolidated statements of changes in equity. Details of the
movements on the Company'’s reserves are set out as below:

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZF-NG-A—-Bz&H 12,560 — 216 (5,531) 7,245
Loss for the year FNER — — - (13,741) (13,741)
Other comprehensive loss: Et2AEE:
Exchange differences arising on franslation  #REE4ZER 28 — — (99) — (99)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREABRER — - (99) (13,741) (13,840)
Capital contribution from the ultimate REERRETE

controlling shareholder — 33,184 — — 33,184
Balance at 31 December 2019 and R-Z-hE+-A=t-AK

1 January 2020 —2-35-A-BriH 12,560 33,184 17 (19,272) 26,589
Loss for the year FRER — — — (8,148) (8,148)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit 2 EEE

ltem that will not be subsequently HERT BN HERR

reclassified to profit or loss: ZHEE :

Exchange differences arising on translation  #EEAZEX =% — — (4,458) — (4,458)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNREBERER — — (4,458) (8,148) (12,608)
Capitalisation of shares (Note 26) Rrfn & A ME (P 26) (2,994) — — — (2,994)
Issue of shares pursuant to the Listing RE EWETRO (R LHiEERS)

(net of listing related expenses) 86,517 — - — 86,517
2019 final dividends —E-hERERE (9,357) - - - (9,357)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-B-BETZA=+-AZ&H 86,726 33,184 (4,341) (27,420) 88,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Share premium

The share premium account of the Group and the Company
includes the premium arising from the issue of new shares pursuant
to the Reorganisation.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 represents
contribution by Mr. Ernest Chen by capitalised his amount due from
the Group on 31 October 2019.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the franslation of the financial statements of the Company and
certain subsidiaries whose functfional currencies are different from
the presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements.

Other reserves

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-R—Bz&#

Appropriation to safety reserve ERELRRE

Utilisation of safety reserve BRAZ2HE

Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve BREETRAGBE

Balance at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 NE+ZA=+—-Bk
“Z-TE-A-Hz&E®

Appropriation to safety reserve BREERZZGEE

Utilisation of safety reserve BRZ2HE

Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve BRELTRHMHE

Balance at 31 December 2020

R-B-BE+-A=+-H2#&H

a B R Rk M R ()

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF
27. f#E(E)
B RE

AEBRARBZBOEEREERBEEEEITHRMD A
EEZME e

BEXEE
BE_T_ZER_FT-NFT+_A=t—RZELRHHE
Rﬁ%*ﬁ%ﬁf‘ﬁiﬁé\_%—ﬂiﬂ-ﬂ:ﬂ——Eﬂ%ﬁ\)f%fﬂ&ﬁ%l
HRBEARCHEE -

BE X

ERFHEERENEEE AR MBHRRZ 2GR TR
MABMARR RETHE AR ZMBRERAELEZAEI
MEZEFE o

Hitbf

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ABEFT AREFT
2,273 8,693 10,966

— 5,942 5,942

— (2,300) (2,300)

1,155 — 1,155
3,428 12,335 15,763

— 10,826 10,826

— (2,495) (2,495)

5,570 — 5,570
8,998 20,666 29,664
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

27. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the Company’s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to appropriate 10%
of the annual statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC fo the statutory surplus reserve
unfil the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the entity’s
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised
to offset prior years’' losses and may be capitalised as registered
capital, provided that the remaining balance of the statutory surplus
reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

Safety reserve

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Work Safety, certain subsidiaries are
required to set aside an amount to a safety reserve at different rates
ranging from 0.5% to 4% per annum of the fotal revenue recognised
during the year. The reserve can be utilised for improvements of
safety on production.

28. COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures contfracted for but not yet incurred at the end
of each reporting period are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment mE - BER&E
(b) Operating lease commitments
The Group as the lessor

At 31 December 2020, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating lease with its fenants
which fall due as follows:

Within 1 year —ER
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BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

27. f#fE(4)
EEBBHE

RETBERRNE - ARRRHEEM 2 HE 2R ERZT

B ARE R RAEE 2 B&F AT &N (R HE T8
EFEBRR)Z10%BAEERSMHE  EERFBED
REHREDEREMEARS0% A LE - A ERBFHEHA AR
HHBEFEBENENER - HEERBHERENSF
ERFEME R 2 25% °

Z2EE

REVERBNBERZ2LEEEEREARBAMZE TR
EETHEBARAUTREXRRE - F2BERLE
@ ZeBEANFACHERRELENFEFO05%E
4% > ZEEAANNELEEL R °

28. &iE
(a) BEREIE
RNEREMRETHEREENERTHWOT ¢

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
86,031 26,936
(b) REHEEHRIE
KEFER LA
RZBZF+_HA=+— EI REEAFHMIESEHE
BRI Z2ARKEEKEHSEEBF AR H3HA 0
™~
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREF
150 =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following transactions with its related

e MR R MR (')

HE T -_FF+ - A=+—HIFFE

29. BEAXRS

mAﬁﬁth&%/ﬁéfﬂl“E DRTRETEESN  REBERE—RE

parties in the normal course of its business and mutually agreed

between both parties:

(a) Recurring transactions

Rent paid to Mr. Ernest Chen (Notes (i) and {ii))
Purchase of red wine from a related company (Notes {iii))

(i) The Group rents two properties from Mr. Ernest Chen with a lease
term of 2.4 to 3 years (2019: 2.4 to 3 years) with annual rent payment
of RMB1,680,000 (2019: RMB1,680,000). These leased properties are
recognised as right-of-use assets with net carrying amount of RMB717,000
(2019: RMB2,291,000), with respective lease liabilities of RMB768,000

(2019: RMB2,359,000) as at 31 December 2020.

(ii) During the year, the Group rented another property from Mr. Ernest (ii)
Chen with a lease term of 6 months (2019: Nil) with aggregated rent

payment of RMB420,000 (2019: Nil).

(i) Mr. Ernest Chen and Mr. Leo Chen, executive directors of the Company, (iii)

are the beneficiary owners of this related company.

(b) Guarantees provided by related parties

%%i@%iqﬂ HERENTBEUTARREZR S ¢
(a) BEMERS
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEETFT
BRRMEEES 2 S (B (i) & (i) 2,100 1,680
) B Bt 1 ) B8 B A0 (P22 (iii)) 1,029 1,321

(i) AEBERFEAEEEAMENE  HEMR24E3F(Z

T-NF:24E3F) FEEERARE,680,0007T(=

—NF: AR¥1,680,0007T) - ZFHEMEERRER

REE RHFE/ARE717000T(ZF—NF : ARE

2,291,0007T) - EXEMBEERBER T _FTF+ _A=+—
HRAR®KE768,000L(ZF—NF : AR 2,359,0007C) °

RER - AEERAELEEERS —HYE HEHR6
BA(ZZ—AF: &) H2EERARK420,000T(=F
—NE ) e

ARBRTEERPBLEERRMBEERZAH AT ZER
BAN -

(b) BAELTREMNIER

RMB'000 RMB'000
ANBEFT AREF
Guarantees of interest-bearing bank borrowings provided by — BEREAREAN TS RTERER
Mr. Ernest Chen — 25,000
Guarantees of interest-bearing bank borrowings provided by FRIFIBSE 4 R4t EE B R ITRTIER
Mr. Leo Chen - 25,000
Guarantees of other receivables provided by BR iAo ST IR A E A U SRR IR R
Mr. Ernest Chen 52,000 —
In March 2020, the guarantees of interest-bearing bank borrowings N—E-FFE=F » AFRERLE RRIAREAEIRER

provided by Mr. Ernest Chen and Mr. Leo Chen were released. BIRITEDIEZERED#ERE -

N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 29. BEFRS(E)

(c) FEEEAESHFM

EBERAREREARNRAREEAMENE - 528
REHARRED 2B ZEAL  BEAATNEE -
EEERABZMEMT ;

(c) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding positions with
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including the directors
of the Company. Key management personnel remuneration is as

follows:
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4 ZHREDEF 5,266 1,559
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RGBT EIHR 69 47
5,335 1,606

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30. BEFIFEZEHMIA

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFT

Financial assets SMEE

Financial assefs at amortised cost BRENAHEZEREE

— Trade and bills receivables and other receivables — B REBEKGIEN R E YRR 128,276 67,475

— Pledged bank deposits — BERBAER 38,067 23,000

— Cash and cash equivalents — ReRBEEEY 77,168 16,468
243,511 106,943

Financial liabilities tHEE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost BRENAHEZERAE

— Trade and bills payables, accruals and other payables — B RERENTUR B ERREMENTUR 208,918 174,764

— Lease liabilities —HEaE 10,551 5,573

— Inferest-bearing bank borrowings — T ERITER 134,155 124,810

— Other borrowings — HAfEm 37,751 —
391,375 305,147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks including interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk through its use of financial instruments in
its ordinary course of operations.

The Group does not have any written risk management policies and
guidelines. The directors of the Company monitor the financial risk
management and fake such measures as considered necessary from
time to time tfo minimise such financial risks.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk primarily arises from
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings obfained at variable rates expose
the Group to the cash flow interest rate risk. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings obtained at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. In general, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at floating rates as well as fixed rates,
based upon the capital market condifions and the Group's infernal
requirements. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's fixed
rates borrowings and floating rates net borrowings are as follows:

Fixed rate borrowings: EEER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FEBRITER
Other borrowings HA a0

2oK:
SRR
7 BERROER
7 B

Floating rate borrowings:
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Less: pledged bank deposits
Less: bank balances

e MR R MR (')

BE—_E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF
31. BXEREEREMIAEZAFE

AEEREAFEEBETEREMERTAAAZIR
B BEMXER  FERBREEBESER

AREEEEMSERARERBRNIES - AAREERE
SPBRAMRERE - XN ERER R 0 B 2 e LAORE
BERAMBER o

(o) FRE

MEREBEEHR TSN EEEKR 2 2B T AR FER
ARBEERERB AR o REEAS 2 M KRR T EK
BEHBRITHER °

RAEMNERRZA BRITEREAREEERSRER
KRR - REEFERG 25 B RITERREMERER
SEHBATFENERR - —KRME  AREREBEEART
AR e AN 55 8 2 R 2 S B R 2K e [E E A R VS &
HER R_Z-FFR-F-NF+_A=1+—H &
SEZERERITSEFOFHRLT

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
35,521 24,900
37,751 -
73,272 24,900
98,634 99,910
(38,067) (23,000)
(76,844) (16,112)
(16,277) 60,798
56,995 85,698
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group's profit after
income tax and retained earnings to a possible change in interest
rates of +/- 1%, with effect from the beginning of each reporting
period. The calculations are based on the Group's pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, interest-bearing bank borrowings and
other borrowings at floating rate held at the reporting date. All
other variables are held constant. A positive/(negative) number
below indicates an increase in profit after income tax and retained
earnings where interest rates increased by 1%.

Impact arising from pledged bank deposits and
bank balances

Impact arising from interest-bearing bank borrowings HERTERCTE

For a decrease in interest rate by 1%, there would be an equal
but opposite impact on the profit after income tax and retained
earnings.

The assumed changes in interest rates are considered to be
reasonably possible based on observation of current market
conditions and represents the management’'s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the period until the
next annual reporfing date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 had been
prepared on the same basis.
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E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF
3. BEREEREMIEZAFE(E)

(a) FEmEE(E)
HBEED T

TRAFAAREE ZRATEBRE N N R B BRI R A]5E
BE+/- 1% (HERTHNFEER) 2BEE - AR
HRBEASERBRE BMBERIBNERFE 22 EMR
RITER - RITHER - FHRRITERREMEREL < 7
BFHMAERRERIE - TXZE/(B)HFRRE
FEIBIN%E - BRATSHREEN RRE B 2IBE -

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ANREFTT

theeE
967 335
(775) (790

HHFIETFE 1% HERPAEHREEN RRE BN ERER
BERZEE -

k2 BREBHEBRERIT TSR E R BT b
BB AEREYES T —EEERERBEH
=2 WA LB -

BE_Z-NFT_A=THILFEZEEUBERME
ZHREDN TR AR EEREL -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on ifs
contfractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
The Group’'s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits and bills receivable is limited
because the counterparties are banks, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk. Other receivables are due to various group of
debtors and the directors of the Company consider the credit risk of
these parties is low.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. As at 31 December
2020, the Group has a concentration of credit risk as approximately
50% (2019: 30%) of its trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest debtor. This debtor is an infernational trading company with
good past credit repayment history and records with the Group.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability fo pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due within
180 days from the date of biling. Debtors with balances that are
more than 6 months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF
31. BEREEREMIEZAFE(E)

(b) FERR

ERERAREXSGHFRBTEANEEMERAEEESL
BBERZRER - AEENERERREIEREE SHEUGK
B ANRZHF RAKRERREERRRENRT - A
SEmEEREMRESEEY  CHERRTEREERSEE
SIEMEERBAR o B EE AR EIEA RHERIIERS
AR MARREZRBH/ZFALTNEERRRE -

)16 ¢

RS EERAL EEEG RAREERERES
BAREESE MRS EERETERARATE
HEERREASTEENAEBEAETAAEEEE
£oR-E-BE+-A=t+-B AEEEETET
SHER - FE AR S EKHE 4 50% (— T~ A EF -
30%) A 8 o7 S B B A A 2 BAOE o SIS A B —
BRRSHA R (HAERTE B4R FEERRES R
%) -

PIEBEETEESENTLBRETEMNEENE - &
FHAE TR E P BES B 0 50 8k N 3R By 60 5 5088
ho UEEEPHAENKRBEEMAREP EEMELHR
BHHEER - RFEZREENI A HERAHE
180 R - R HERNEANEBEAZTZBEMER
RS - —RME - AREALTSRFFWEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at an
amount equal to lifetfime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
use debtors’ ageing to assess impairment for its customers because
these customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ ability to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual ferms. The estimated ECL loss rates are estimated based
on the Group's estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of
the groupings, less risk-free rate, which reflect the credit risk of the
debtors, over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
forward-looking informatfion that is available without undue cost or
effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure
to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables:

Ageing based on the invoice date

RERE B HHORE

At 31 December 2020
Within 1 month
Over 1 month but less than 3 months

R-Z2-BF+-A=t+-A
—fEAR
BR—EAEIR={EA

Over 3 months but less than 1 year BRA=EAEIR—F

At 31 December 2019

Within 1 month

Over 1 month but less than 3 months
Over 3 months but less than 1 year

R=Z-n%E+=A=1+-A
—fEAR
BE-EABRLR={EA
BA=EAEIR—F
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E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF
3. BEREEREMIEZAFE(E)

(b) FERRERE)
ESEWE(E)

AEEREERFHBREEBRARNSR(ERRE
EEFHEGEL)HAEESRKFIABIEEE - (ERA%SE
FEERRERE &7  AEEFERBEHAZRERFHE
BEPZRE RARZSFEPEREBRFHEMERZAZER
P BEERRBERREFREA QGRR A2 H
RIEZEEN - A AREEBERREASEE SAS
ZHSERE 2 EERERBRAN X (RREFAZEER
) BRIABBAZEMFRETES - URNBANAS
RAHLANTEG 2 ATEEERHEL BE - B E T HE
B - AEREBFEEBSAZHBEENSZNER

TR FREAKEHENE ZRRFREERR REH
FEEEENER

% RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR%TFr

0.2 22,553 (60) 22,493
1.0 33,832 (343) 33,489
35 14,405 (515) 13,890
70,790 (918) 49,872

0.2 27,281 (48) 27,233
0.8 19,175 (159) 19,016
2.8 15,553 (435) 15,118
62,009 (642) 61,367



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year are as follows:

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF
31. BEREEREMIEZAFE(E)

(b) FERRE)
ESERSE(E)
FREZFRRFAERBRERESOT

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTL

Balance at 1 January R—A—BH&EH 642 —
Impairment losses recognised during the year (Note 9) FRERORESREFE?) 276 642
Balance at 31 December R+=A=+—RMN4H 918 642

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group has net current liabilities of approximately RMB2,431,000
(2019: RMB74,269,000) as at 31 December 2020. Management closely
monitors the Group's financial performance and liquidity position.
A number of measures have been put in place by management to
improve the financial position and alleviate the liquidity pressure.
As at the date when these consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue, the Group had unutilised banking facilities of
approximately RMB44,610,000 (2019: RMB10,189,000).

Taking info account the unutilised banking facilities and after
assessing the Group’s current and future cash flow position, the
directors of the Company are satisfied the Group will be able to
meet its financial obligation when they fall due. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group
is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, other borrowings, lease
liabilities, interest-bearing bank borrowings and also in respect of
its cash flow management. The Group's objective is to maintain an
appropriate level of liquid assets and committed lines of funding to
meet ifs liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

(c) RBEZEAR

RoZ-FE+-A=+—0 AEEHESADEEFE
PANREE2,431,00070(ZF—hE : AR 74,269,000
L) BEREFVERASE HBRERRBES MK
e BIREC RS EL BN EN BN IR SRS E
SZEN RRERGVBRABEENEEE  FEE Y
RERIBTREN BARE 44,610,000 7T ( =T — .4
AR 10,189,0007T) °

REBAPARITHE - LHEFGAEEE R RKEA S
MEBAMRIR - NRABEREMNANEE G EHRN 2 BT
HBBEME - Bt ARAEETRRRIFELEE LR
RAVMBHRRBEEZR -

nBpEeEREASEELIETRESREBEMRABZEE
ZEBER - AEEERGEE S RFRENKIE - B
ERREMENTOR - RMER - HERENERTHE
FARFRERERETEZRDECAR - REBZE
BRERBEERAHEEREGFNAEKF - RN
HEHREHRBESHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities
at each reporting period, based on the contracted undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

RMB'000
AREFR
As at 31 December 2020 RZBZBE+-A=1-A
Trade and bills payables, accruals and other BHREHEMNTE  EHEAR
payables Efb e ZA 208,918
Lease liabilities HEAE 10,551
Inferest-bearing bank borrowings TERAREH 134,155
Other borrowings Efbies 37,751
391,375
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-AFTZB=1-A
Trade and bills payables, accruals and other BAREREMNE  EHERR
payables AfpfftsE 174,764
Lease liabilities HERE 5573
Inferest-bearing bank borrowings TERER 124,810
305,147

(d) Fair values of financial instruments

Financial instruments are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amounts of these financial instruments are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns to the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid fo the shareholders, refturn
capital fo the shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets fo reduce
debts. No changes in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital were made during the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debf, which
included interest-bearing bank borrowings, other borrowings and
net of cash and cash equivalents, as disclosed in Notes 22, 23 and
19 respectively, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves disclosed in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing actfivifies are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group'’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities:

e MR R MR (')

BE T _FFf - H=+—HIFFF

32. EXERER

AEBEERERNE ERARANEERAHELE KRR
REEMBHERBDBLEAE B REELEBA
A BERRLTR o

Z%Z‘ﬁh%ﬂﬁkﬁzliﬁﬂ% AREB A REHBE SN TR ZM

CARREEER - %’éﬁ%ﬁﬂx{ﬁiﬁ’iéﬁuﬁd\
1§%°%¢W§$¥;§$ZET¥ KB B IELE
o

AEENEAGBEERERFE(RBREDBINME22
23)3219%})323&2#5%&171%% HER(HRRAE R
REeEEN) ARBREEE B RRTE 2 RA R
B2 RNRBHEA AJEEHER -

33. REFEEHR

T?E%WJZJSE@@%SEE?EZEEQEU( BEHE e KIE

/fﬁ@))zui\i cREEPELAZBBERELITHERN
REBEGFEERIRNEXNBAMEEHZRERENZER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Balance at 1 January 2019

Changes from financing cash flows:

Proceeds from interest-bearing bank borrowings
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings
Interest paid

Repayment to a director

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net change from financing cash flows

Other changes:

Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings

Capital contribution from ultimate controlling
shareholder

Interest on lease liabilities

Total other changes

Balance at 31 December 2019
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33. REREEH(E)

RMB’000
AREFR
(Note 21)
(M=E21)

7,252

(1,679)
(394)

(2,073)

394

394

5,573

RMB’000
ARETT
(Note 22)

(&t 22)

94,918

58,743

(28,851)
(6,988)

22,904

6,988

6,988

124,810

RMB’000
ABETT

58,930

(25,746)

(25,746)

(33,184)

(33,184)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

a B R Rk M R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B2 —FE-_FFf+ - A=+—HIFFE
33. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 33. REREER(HE)
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AB®F7 ARETT ARETT
(Note 21) (Note 22)  (Note 20(iv)) (Note 23)
(HsE21) (HEE22) (B 20(iv)) (& 23)
Balance at 1 January 2020 “T-TE-f-HzER 5,573 124,810 — =
Changes from financing cash flows: REREMECLEY
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8B 1TEF 2 Fif5 5B — 159,991 — —
Proceeds from other borrowings HEERZ IERE — — — 38,331
Repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 2 E1THEH — (150,646) — —
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMER — — — (580)
Advance from a director —REEZBN — — 5,943 —
Interest paid BRFIE = (8.827) = (97)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BREEzERTH (2,069) - — -
Interest element of lease rentals paid BIEE2FEHD (393) — — —
Net change from financing cash flows BEREREZEYFHE (2.462) 518 5,943 37,654
Other changes: Hip &)
Interest on interest-bearing bank borrowings &t B RITER 2 H S — 8,827 — —
Interest on other borrowings HipfE R 278 = = = 97
Additions to lease liabilities REMERR 7,047 — — —
Interest on lease liabilities HEREZFIS 393 — — —
Total other changes HitZees 7,440 8,827 — 97
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIB-BE+-A=+-AZ&&H 10,551 134,155 5,943 37,751

34. IREME

R-B_ZFER_FT-NAF+_A=1+—H0 AREHE
BRAEMERFRENE - MAKEMF - AEELEHR
R BE A EE 2 EXFRHIRE -

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group was not involved in
any material litigation or arbitration. As far as the Group was aware,
the Group had no other material litigation or claim which was
pending or threatened against the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

E B Rk M R ()

BE—E_FFf -_H=+—HIFEF

35. ADQT2MBMRREK

Note RMB'000 RMB'000
P 5% AR¥EFT ANRETFT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBLARZRE 3,449 1,228
Loan to subsidiaries EIHBARZER 12,417 =
15,866 1,228

Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRIE R E At B M TR 4,074 4,805
Amounts due from subsidiaries RIS HT B A R IR 51,266 32,018
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEY 21,737 203
77,079 37,026
Current liabilities REEE

Accruals [EETER 1,004 11,664
Amount due to a subsidiary B —EMBARFUER — 1
1,004 11,665
Net current assets RBEERE 76,075 25,361
Net assets EEFE 91,941 26,589

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRGHE
Share capital A 3,792 ==
Reserves 4 27 88,149 26,589
Total equity BRAE 91,941 26,589

* Less than RMB1,000

* DR AR¥ 1,000 7T

AR EHRRENR - E-_—F=A-+=BHARQRAE
ST RERH - WA TALTRERES

The financial statements of the Company were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 23
March 2021 and are signed on ifs behalf by:

Mr. Chen Binggiang Mr. Ng Cheuk Lun

PR IR 38 £ & REMEE
Director Director
B BE
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